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RE: Systemic State Administrative Complaint against the Jackson Public School System

Dear Ms Davis:

Attached is a systemié IDEA state administrative complaint against the Jackson Public
School System. The systemic complaint is filed under IDEA’s State Complaint
Procedures which are set forth in the Act’s accompanying regulations.34 C.F.R.

§300.151-153.

We have also forwarded a copy of the complaint to the Jackson Public School System’s

" General Counsel.

Sincerely,

Corrie Cockrell, Esq.

Sheila Bedi, Esq.

Mississippi Youth Justice Project .
A Project of the Southern Poverty Law Center
021 N. President Street, Suite B

Jackson, MS 39202

(Ph.) 601-948-8882

(Fax) 601-948-8885

Wendell Hutchinson, Esq.
Disability Rights Mississippi

Jim ComstéckQGalagan, Esq.

Southern Disability Law Center




September 8, 2010

Hand Deliver

Mississippi Department of Education

Office of Special Education

359 North West Street

Jackson, MS 39205

ATTN: Susan Davis, Division Director, Office Of Parent Outreach

'RE: Systemic State Administrative Complaint against the Jackson Public School System

L INTRODUCTION

The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act/»s@f 2004 (here1naﬁer “IDEA”), 20
U.S.C. § 1400 et seq., promises all students with dlsabﬂaue a free and appropriate public
education (FAPE). But this is a hollow promise for many JPSS stud nts. The School Districts’

wholesale IDEA violations have forced many students with disabilities“into an endless cycle of
punitive and unlawful removals from the classroom environment. As'a result of these removals,

students lag far behind their peers academically and as a result grow increasing frustrated with
school and in some instances “dread” attending school. Instead of providing Petitioners with the
behavioral support services (related services, appropriate Functional Behavioral ‘Assessments
(FBAs) and Behavior Intervention Pla s»(Bf%} they desperately need, the Jackson Public School
System (JPSS) has con31stent1y chose ,to deny em such services and to repeatedly pumsh them

placement in Capital City Alternatwe SchooI (CCAS), creating an unlawfully segregated
environment in which stug ents “with dlsa‘bﬁﬁtles are isolated and repeatedly punished for
manifestations of their disability, #RSS further fails to provide these youth with the supports they
need to achieve academic gains

%;1 to transition into adulthood.

These pervasive violations have cuit short the life chances of countless JPSS students. This class
complaint sge‘k‘s wide spread systemic relief that will reform the manner in which JPSS
administers | special education services and discipline. The relief sought in this complaint will not
%comphes with federal law, but it will help ensure that the school district
t§amost valuable resources—its students.

II. CLAIMS

I. Systemic Administrative Complaint on Behalf of A.M., A.L., and a Class of All Similarly
Situated and Treated Students with Emotional Disabilities as well as on behalf of E.H., T.A.,
P.A., CO., and a Class of All Similarly Situated Special Education Students who manifest
behavioral issues and are subject to three or more disciplinary removals (either In-School
Suspensions, Out-of-School Suspensions and undocumented, illegal removals from school —



“cool off removals”) and/or placement in an alternative school setting in the Jackson Public
School System (JPSS);

II. Systemic Administrative Complaint on Behalf of R.B., Rd.B., Ra.B. and a Class of All
Similarly Situated Special Education Students who transfer into JPSS from an a out-of-state or
in-state local school district;

III. Systemic Office of Civil Rights (OCR) Complaint on Behalf of all Special Education

Alternative School (Capital City Alternative School [CCAS]).
III. PETITIONERS

L A.M.
DOB: 12/12/1994
Grade: 8
School: Hardy Middle School
MSIS ID: 419261
Exceptionality: Emotional Dlsa‘bllitay (E’ )
Date of Current Eligibility: 10/22/2007

II. E.H.
DOB: 11/22/1995
Grade: 8
School: Hardy Middle Schc;%léwo
MSIS ID: 6@5777 ) 4
Exceptlonahty ”’%Sk;)eclﬁc Learnmg Disability (SLD), subcategories: Basic Reading

Date of Cur;%t Ellglblhty 10/25/2005
2T A,
{  DOB: 6/30/1995

Graﬁe 8
: chwol Hardy Middle School

“MSIS ID: 419479
Exceptionality: Intellectual Disability with Educable Mental Retardation
Date of Current Eligibility: 4/13/2009

IV. P.A.
DOB: 11/12/1993
Grade: 9%



School: Forest Hill High School

MSIS ID: 171073

Exceptionality: Other Health Impairment (OHI)
Date of Current Eligibility: 5/2/2007

V. A.L.
' DOB: 10/21/1992
Grade: 120
School: Jim Hill High School
MSIS ID: 171922
Exceptionality: Emotional Disability (ED)
Date of Current Eligibility: 5/23/2008

V. C.0.
DOB: 7/17/19%4
Grade: 9"
School: Murrah High School
MSIS ID: 166736
Exceptionality: Other Health Impalrment (
Date of Current Eligibility: 10/2/2007

VII. R.B.

DOB: 6/27/19%4
Grade: 9th i
School: Wingfield High Scho@‘ali
MSIS ID: 49978 / g '

VIIL

Exceptlonahty Emotional Disability
Date of Eligibility Determination by JPSS: February 10, 2005
Date of Current Eligibility: May 2010

IX. Ra.B.
DOB: 12/28/1992
Grade: 9%
School: Wingfield High School
MSIS ID: 170002



Exceptionality: Emotional Disability
Date of Current Eligibility: May 2010

IV.FACT ALLEGATIONS

The undersigned counsels are filing a Systemic Administrative Complaint on Behalf of A.M.,
AL. and a Class of All Similarly Situated and Treated Students with Emotional Disabilities as
well as on behalf of EH., T.A., P.A., C.O. and a Class of All Similarly Sltuated Spec1a1
Educatlon Students who mamfest behavmral issues and are subject to thre&”@;r
removals’; and a Systemic Administrative Complaint on Behalf of R.B.%;Rd:B&.Ra.B.

Class of All Similarly Situated Special Education Students Wh%mtransfer 1nt”§ JPSS from either
out-of-state or in-state local school districts. Both systemic cqmp"fémts are bemg filed to redress
systemic violations of the Individuals with Disabilities Edtcation Improvement Act of 2004
(hereinafter “IDEA”), 20 U.S.C. § 1400 et seq. by the J ackson Public School System (JPSS).

Petitioner A.M. is a fifteen (15) year old eighth (Sth) grade student’currently attending Hardy
Middle School. At all times relevant to this Aﬁc&e’mplaint and since October 2007, he has been
determined eligible for special education se 'ees under IDEA.

Petitioner E.H. is a fourteen (14) year old e1@th’%ade student at Hardy Middle School. He is
classified as a SLD student. At all times relevant toitHis complaint and since October 2005, he
has been determined eligible for spécial education services under IDEA.

Petitioner T.A. is a fifteen (15) year old eighth grade student at Hardy Middle School in JPSS.
At all times relevant to this complaint and%smce 2002, he has been determined eligible for special

education services under IDEA.

Petitioner P.A. is a sixteen (16) year old student at Forest Hill High School. At all times relevant
to this comp{amty nd since 2001, he has been determined eligible for special education services

Petitioner AL is a seventeen (17) year old student who is currently attending the Career
Academic PlacemeéinitProgram (CAPP) in JPSS. At all times relevant to this complaint and since
2008, she has been determined eligible for special education services under IDEA.

Petitioner C.O. is a sixteen (16) year old student at Murrah High School. At all times relevant to
this complaint and since 2007, he has been determined eligible for special education services
under IDEA.

! Throughout this complaint the term “disciplinary removals” refers to either In-School Suspensions (ISS) or Out-of-
School Suspensions (OSS) or ‘cool-off” removals and\or placement in an alternative school setting in the JPSS.
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Petitioner R.B. is a sixteen (16) year old student currently going into the 9th grade at Wingfield
High School. R.B. re-entered JPSS at the beginning of the 2008-09 school-year as a 7th grade
student at Brinkley Middle School. Immediately prior to attending Brinkley Middle School,
R.B. attended school in the Cobb County School District of Marietta, Georgia from 2006 to
2008. Prior to moving to Georgia, R.B. was enrolled in JPSS, where she was initially evaluated
and determined eligible for IDEA services as a student with a Specific Learning Disability (SLD)
in 2004.

Petitioner Rd.B. is a fourteen (14) year old student currently in the 8th grade a?‘-mntten Mlddle
School. Rd.B. re-entered JPSS at the beginning of the 2008-09 school-year asia grade
student at Brinkley Middle School. Immediately prior to attending Brinkley Mid e&fgéh001
Rd.B. attended school in the Cobb County School District of Marietta, Georgia from 2006 to
2008. Prior to that, Rd.B. was a student in JPSS where he was initially evaluated and determined

/N

eligible for IDEA services as a student with a Specific Learning Dis ,v,111ty (SLD) in February
2005. :

School Pnor to attendmg Wingfield High chool RaB;““WaS" student in the Cobb County
District of Marietta, Georgia from 2006 to @08 Whlle:%l the Cobb County School District,
Ra.B. was initially evaluated and deterrmnedé«eli, ible xf tIDEA services as a student with
Emotional Disturbance.

I. Systemic Claims on Behalf;%of A.M., A.L. and a Class of All Similarly Situated and
Treated Students with Emotional Blsablhtles as well as on behalf of E.H., T.A.. P.A.. C.O.
and a Class of All Slmllarlv Sltuated"‘fs_pgclal Education Students who manifest behavioral
issues and are sublectéto three or moredisciplinary removals

A. Denial ofiH \zxrg“ %yApproprlate Public Education (FAPE): Failure to Provide
Appropriate ¥ B’Levels of‘Related Services

B. Denial of FAPE: «Failure to Comply with IDEA’s Discipline Regulations

C. Denial of FAPE: *‘Fallure to Confer Meaningful Educational Benefit

D#Denial of FAPE: Failure to Comply with the Procedural and Substantive

| Requlrements Governing the Development and Implementation of Individualized

Educatlon Programs (IEPs)

])enlal of FAPE: Failure to Provide Educational Services in the Least Restrictive

Environment

F. Denial of FAPE: Failure to Provide Necessary and Appropriate Transition
Services

G. Denial of FAPE: Failure to Properly Identify and Provide Individualized Extended
School-year (ESY) Services to Eligible Students '




JPSS has committed multiple systemic violations of their substantive and procedural rights under
IDEA, and those of similarly situated students with Emotional Disabilities and all other special
education students who manifest behavioral issues and are subject to three or more disciplinary

removals.

Specifically, Petitioners contend that JPSS has committed the following systemic violations of

IDEA:

a.

JPSS has systemically failed the past several years to provide sufficient and
appropriate levels of related services to Petitioners resulting in a lack of behavioral
progress, numerous discipline incidents that have resulted in Out-of-School (OSS) or
In-School-Suspensions (ISS) and a consequent significant loss of instruction time. The
significant loss of instruction time has caused Petltlon”éiés to fall farther and farther
behind academically and this factor has contributed significantly to their placement in
more restrictive educational environments. Additionally, many of these discipline
incidents (not involving, weapons, drugs, serious bodily injury) ave led to Petitioners
being placed at JPSS’ alternative school, CCKS,%here Petitioners have made little if
any academic progress as reflected by their:CCAS grades and also little or no ongoing
behavior progress as manifested by their repe,gée placements at CCAS. As a result of
the lack of educational benefit Petitioners receive at CCAS, when they return to regular
school settings, they are farther behind academ?‘éé’lly and their behavior challenges
remain unaddressed Both ofithese factors create a revolving door through which
/%S an ‘%%ihelr regular schools without receiving any real

benefit at either placement.
JPSS has systemlca%y failed th :
Behavior Assessments (FBAs) “
appropriate Behd¥i Interventlon ‘Plans (BIPS) which have lead to and magnified the

st Msj;everal years to conduct appropriate Functional

JPSS has systemically fa:ﬂed the past several years to align Pet1t1oners IEP short term
objectives and annual goals with Petitioners’ actual present levels of academic
performance (PLOP). ThlS stunning failure has consmtently resulted in Petltloners

esa%(parhcularly escape behaviors related to skill deficits). Such multiple
adverse consequences have also contributed to the inevitable placement of Petitioners
in restrictive educational settings in violation of IDEA’s Least Restrictive Environment
(LRE) mandate.
JPSS has systemically failed the past several years to consider and implement positive
behavioral interventions and supports for Petitioners who all have behavior marked as
a “special factor” on their IEP.> This failure has perpetuated Petitioners’ lack of
behavioral progress which in turn has adversely affected their academic progress.

2 This systemic pattern is true at JPSS’ middle schools despite the fact that JPSS received grant funding to
implement positive behavioral interventions and supports (PBIS) at all of the district’s middle schools.
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A.

JPSS has systemically failed the past several years to meet and revise Petitioners’
Individualized Education Programs (IEPs) during the course of the school-year to
address any significant and ongoing lack of academic and/or behavioral progress
including their lack of progress in the general curriculum and lack of expected progress
toward their annual goals. This failure has guaranteed a number of negative
consequences including failing grades, grade retentions, and continuing behavioral and
discipline incidents. These inexorable results in turn have contributed to the placement

- of Petitioners in restrictive educational settings.

JPSS has systemically failed the past several years to provide Petitioners with an
education that confers meaningful educational benefit (i.e. meaningful academic and
behavioral progress) as required by IDEA. This failure creates th lowing pervasive
reality: by the time they reach middle school, the Petitioners ar al y

years behind their chronological grade level. JPSS relies on this fact anétthe ongoing
behavior issues Petitioners exhibit after expenencmg&Years of litt e or no academic
progress to justify Petitioner’s placement in moze’ restnctlve educatlonal settings in
violation of IDEA’s LRE mandate. "“:3

JPSS has systemically failed the past several years t®%g9r0v1de Petitioners with
educational services in the LRE as required by IDEA. JPSS has repeatedly failed to
pursue any strategies that would have enabled Petitioners to continue accessing general
education classes such as: a) the use‘&of paraprofessmnal aides (i.e. behavioral aides)
and/or the use of special educatior »/"teac‘hers in general education settings; b) the
practice of increasing related services ingresponse to a student’s challenging behavior
and/or discipline incidents; c) the nnplememtﬁétylon of individual and classroom based
positive behavioral support plans; d) ‘modifications of the regular education
curriculum; €) the us€ f peer supports/coaches and/or peer tutoring; f) the use of
additional supplemental aides and services including providing behavioral intervention
training to regular education teachers.

. JPSS has sy,stemlcally failed *the past several years to provide Petitioners with

appropnate transmon plans that contain appropriate measurable postsecondary goals
;ormei by age appropriate transition assessments related to training,
educatlon employmen&t, and, where appropriate, independent living skills; and an array
of transition servwes including instruction, related services, community experience,
. etc. needed to assist the Petitioners in reaching these goals.

lﬁmgPSS has systemically failed the past several years to provide Petitioners with

Extended School-Year (hereinafter “ESY”) services that were needed by Petitioners in
order ito prevent significant regression regarding academic and/or behavioral skills
d/or to maintain a critical point of instruction or to address extenuating
umstances.

JPSS Has Failed to Provide Sufficient and Appropriate Levels of Related Services

JPSS has denied Petitioners AM., EH., T.A., C.O,, A.L., and all other similarly situated
students with academic and behavior problems FAPE by its failure to provide sufficient and
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appropriate levels of related services that address the inherent behavioral characteristics and
issues associated with the classification of EmD and other students with disabilities who have
behavior problems which adversely affect such students’ educational performance. See 20
U.S.C. § 1401 (a) (26), § 1412 (a) (1), § 1414 (d); 34 C.F.R. § 300.34, § 300.101, § 300.320-
328.

JPSS has consistently failed to provide Petitioners and all other similarly situated students with
appropriate behavioral programming which includes both specialized 1nstruct1on and sufficient
and necessary related services such as social work, counseling and school psy a)ology services
tailored to address identified behavioral issues that adversely affect their education ec1ﬁg;ally,
JPSS has furnished the named complainants and all other similarly situated sttident?g/ with
woefully inadequate levels of social work, counsehng, and psycholo glcal services, if an;y servzces

,,,,,

needs Instead, when JPSS metes out related services, it is based on a biler-plate template or on
the limited availability of JPSS personnel at any given school. Indee\é(‘%the amount of related
services provided has no discernable relation to any of } e Petitioners’ behaviors or restrictive
placements. When behavior issues arise and result in ongomg disciplinary referrals and/or
suspensions (OSS and/or ISS) for Petitioners and tthg i 1131"1%37 situated, JPSS fails to either add
related services to their IEPs or fails to increase the leve“l 0 e@%a%ed services. JPSS further fails
to convene IEP meetings as mandated by IDEA to address such behavioral issues and the often
accompanying lack of academic and/or behavioral progress” Instead JPSS regularly subjects
such students to increasing punishmentgbeginning with ISS and OSS and often ending with
referrals to its alternative school, C% S—or se to the Youth Court where these students face
confinement in a maximum security f?&hty This is a pervasive JPSS failure that is true for all
similarly situated students. -

ions suffered by individual Petitioners
1. Petitioner A.M.

Petitioner A.M. was 1mt1a11y wlualted and classified as a student with an Emotlonal Disability in
2007. His 2007 evaluati@n stated that he had serious conduct problems at school, argued with
teachers,and other students’and started fights with other students.> On the Acters Rating Scale
(ACR)W%%Home Version and School Version, A.M.’s scores indicated significant problems with
attention, social skills and oppositional behavior. A.M.’s score on the Differential Score of
Conduct and Emot10na1 Problems reflected the presence of a serious conduct problem. When the
Childre epressmn Inventory was administered, A.M. indicated that “he has some friends but
would like't6'have more, he is sure someone loves him, and he admitted getting into fights many
times.” The Devereux Scale of Mental Disorders which was completed by his mother and one of
his school administrators reflected that A.M. has significant problems related to conduct,
depression, and his psychological well being. The scale also manifested a highly elevated score

* In fact, when the JPSS Chairperson for A.M.’s evaluation arrived at his school to commence the evaluation, he
was in the office due to being in a “scuffle” with another student. See Page 3 of the Psychometrist Assessment
Report dated October 17, 2007.



related to the “Externalizing Composite” which indicated A.M. may be aggressive, disobedient,
annoying to others, disruptive, under-controlled, restless, and inattentive.* Despite these
extensive and serious behavioral findings JPSS failed to provide A.M. with any related services
(social work, counseling, psychological services) during the 2007-08 school-year and the past
two school-years as well (2008-09 and 2009-10).

During the 2007-08 school-year, A.M. had significant ongoing behavior issues that resulted in 10
days of OSS and 2 days of ISS. A.M. received no related services during this period. During the
2008-09 school-year, A.M.’s behavior issues increased and he was subject to 18 days of OSS and
2 days of ISS. A.M. once again received no related services during this period.

During the 2009-10 school-year, A.M. was subject to 10 days of OSS, 2 days oL [8S ,a:nd Was
placed in JPSS’ alternative school (CCAS) on three different occasions for 45~/éays
did not receive any related services during this period. Remarkaﬁy, even in 11ght of A. M s
significant behavioral and discipline history over the past thrge'years, his IEP for the upcoming
2010-11 school-year (completed April 30, 2010) also fails to incld any related services.

2. Petitioner E.H.

E.H. demonstrated a significant need for related services over the past several years. During the
2008-09 school-year E.H. exhibited significant behavioral issues that resulted in 8 days of OSS
and 9 days of ISS. During the year, E;—}ﬁsd ;%ogicher was also called “many times for conferences
related to his academic and behavior, ”problems””s E.H. received no related services the entire
school-year.

E.H.’s 2009-10 IEP states 1n/€he ‘Present Le 1s'yof Performance (PLOP) that he exhibits “major
behavior problems in the 4c‘lassr<§m ” His I'RE Document Form for 2009-10 states that E.H.’s

* AM.’s numerous behavior incidents an iéextenswe d1sc1p11ne record over the past three years have proven the

accuracy of his evaluation’s s1gn1ﬁcant behavioral findings.

¢ Lt
on August 12 &009 Afte’ ervmg 45 days at this facility, he was returned to Hardy Middle School and placed in a

1ficontai ing on October 8, 2009. Three weeks later, AM. was disciplined again for not
following instructions, walkmg around a classroom, profanity, and a group fight and was returned to JPSS’
alternative schoo 012%3110&161‘ 45 days. Although his IEP Committee met in August, October, and early November
2009 in order to transfer A.M. twice to a restrictive alternative setting and to also change his placement at Hardy
Middle School to a more restrictive self-contained placement, the Committee never discussed nor provided any
related services to AM. AM. was returned to CCAS for a third time in April 2010 due to another discipline
incident.
AM. has desperately needed related services for years (since the fall of 2007) and this provision may well have
prevented the need to change his placement to a restrictive self-contained classroom at Hardy Middle School; and
may have prevented the discipline incidents mentioned above and JPSS’ action in transferring him on three
occasions this year alone to CCAS. JPSS’ stunning failure to provide A.M. with related services (and an appropriate
BIP- see Section IB) has engendered highly restrictive alternative school placements and a restrictive self-contained
classroom placement on his regular school campus. The bottom-line is that AM. has born all the punitive
consequences for JPSS’ multi-year failure to provide him with related services.
¢ £ H.’s annual IEP for the 2008-09 school-year was completed on May 12, 2008. It includes no related services.
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behavior results in consistent disruption of the learning environment. Despite these findings,
JPSS failed to offer E.H. any related services in 2009-10. Moreover, the behavioral information
on E.H.’s LRE Document Form was used in part to change a number of E.H.’s previous regular
education classes to special education classes and thus change E.H.’s placement from regular
education to resource. JPSS thus chosen to place E.H. in a more restrictive environment without
ever providing him any related services.

Even a cursory review of E.H.’s behavior logs and discipline incidents during the 2009-10
school-year manifests his need for significant related services. Behavior logSffr both the fall
of 2009 and spring of 2010 reveal numerous instances where E.H. was | not focused, talkmg,

follow classroom rules. On October 30 2009 a parent conference was he \ H.
ongoing inappropriate classroom behavior. Within two weeks, on November ’12 2009 another
parent conference was held to address several behavioral issues’ including excesswe distraction
to other students, excessive talking and repeated classrooni” ;;g)turbance »  ©n November 19,
2009, E.H. was again referred to the Counselor for refus1n§“to follew the rules and arguing with
adults. In January 2010, E.H. received a two day ISS for hitting ano; ther student in the gym. In

February 2010, E.H. was issued a one day ISS for hazing and making fun of another student.

Despite all of the above behavior issues, JPSS%Ied to provide E.H. with any related services
during the 2009-10 school-year and this cdr{lstrztuted’*a clear denial of FAPE. E.H.’s May 20,
2010 annual IEP also contains no related serv1ces He 1s 'thus destined to face the same FAPE
denial also during the 2010-2011 school- year bt

3. Petitioner T.A.

xxxxx

exhibited 51gmﬁcant behavroral issues f@r several years. His behavioral issues and challenges
manifested a clear need fongche provision of related services. Unfortunately, he never received

ﬂg eligible for IDEA services in 2002 through the end of the 2009-

T.A’s 2007 08 IEP states that he was receiving mental health day treatment services from Hinds
Behqv,roral Health Center and that he can exhibit aggressive behavior at times, become highly
impulsive and drsplay a lack of respect for authority. Wrthm two Weeks of the start of school,

T.A’s. 8209 IEP states that T.A. exhibits “oppositional and aggressive behavior. When he
makes up his mind to do something he does it and is not always conscious of the consequences.
He is highly aggressive, acts impulsively and shows a blatant disregard for authority. In many
cases he lacks self-control and must be removed and placed in an alternative school setting
(outside the classroom in the auditorium, front office, sent home with supervision).” T.A. had
numerous behavioral issues throughout the school-year resulting in 6 days of OSS and 2 days of
ISS as well several undocumented instances where T.A. was simply sent home for the day.
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T.A.’s 2009-10 IEP again states that T.A. “is highly aggressive, acts impulsively and shows a
blatant disregard for authority. In many cases he lacks self-control and must be removed and
placed in an alternative setting.” The 2009-10 IEP then adds “T.A. has great emotional and
behavioral difficulties.” Remarkably, no related services were listed on his IEP. As the IEP
predicted, T.A. had numerous behavioral incidents (as reported on behavior logs of Ms.
Newsome and Ms. Porter) during the weeks of 8/17-21/09, 8/24-28/09, and 9/8- 11/09" and
several discipline incidents during the same first month of 2009-10 school-f»year (discipline
incidents occurred 8/27/09, 8/28/09, 9/3/09, 9/9/09, 9/10/09). As a result of TiA.’s extensive
behavioral difficulties during the first month of school, his IEP Committee met on S ptember 21,

2009, and recommended he be transferred to JPSS’ alternative school for 45 days. It *@nce again
failed to recommend the provision of related services. T.A. did mot return from alternative
school to his regular school (Hardy Middle School) until Janua&yz/ 4 2010 and he returned
without any related services.

days of OSS and 2 days of ISS.

T.A. could not benefit from his education without reg{‘é\“”rving the related services that were
essential to helping manage his behavior. JPSS” seyer q:%faﬂure (including during the 2009-
10 school-year) to provide him with appropriate levels, of el Ated, services resulted in a lack of
behavioral progress, several alternative school placementsiand an unequivocal denial of FAPE.®

4, Petitioner C.O.

Petitioner C.O. has also not been provid elated services to address his long history of
behavioral issues and disciplinary referr%ﬂ 5. C Oc;f‘s September 19, 2007 re-evaluation found that
C.O. sometimes exhibits senéils* conduct pro] lems at school, sometimes is disobedient, out of
control, sometimes is dlsrupilx ¢ and defies authority, sometimes starts fights with others without
being provoked, sometimes 1 ﬁhdrawn and unresponsive, sometimes argues with teachers and
other students. On the Acters Rating Scale - School Version, C.O.’s teacher scores reflected that
he has significant problems W1th%§fttent1on hyperactivity, and oppositional behavior. The
Differential Tes’g%of Conduct and Emotional Problems revealed that C.O. has 31gmﬁcant conduct
problems. "E ese pr ”’blems were listed as C.O. “cannot control temper; ‘blows up’ over the least
thing, uses poor ]udg%; ent, will do or say anything on impulse, is disruptive, tendency to be
disobedient and_defiant of authority, gets very upset when criticized or makes mistakes.” The
Devereux Scale ofiMéntal Disorders reflected that C.O. has significant problems with conduct,
anxiety, and internalization. Despite these extensive and significant behavioral findings in C.O.’s

7 T.A.’s behavior logs for these weeks reveal that he received unsatisfactory ratings daily for essentially all of his
behavior objectives due to the following types of persistent, ongoing behavior — sleeping in class; refusing to
complete work; rude and agitated when redirected; late for class regularly (tardy); excessive talking; argumentative;
disrespectful towards students and teachers.

8 JPSS’ recent decision in May 2010 to finally provide T.A. a nominal 20minutes per week of social work services
also constitutes a denial of FAPE. T.A.’s new 2010-11 IEP continues to state that he has “great emotional and
behavioral difficulties” and 20 minutes per week of Social Work services (8 years after becoming eligible for
IDEA services) is woefully inadequate to address the depth, breadth and scope of what’s become his “great
emotional and behavioral difficulties.”

11



re-evaluation, JPSS failed to provide him with any related services during the 2007-08 school-
year.” JPSS also maintained this failure during the 2008-09 and 2009-10 school-years.

During the 2008-09 school-year C.O. had several behavior and discipline incidents and in
December 2008 was transferred to JPSS’ alternative school as a consequence for a school fight.
JPSS was more than willing to transfer him to an alternative school setting for behavior clearly
related to his disability but remained steadfast in its ongoing refusal to provide C.O. with related
services to help address these same behaviors. JPSS chose to punish C.O.’s behavior rather than
provide him with the services necessary to help him manage and improve his behavior.

JPSS’ same punitive approach was on full display during the 2009-10 sch%*é‘jl—year C.O. received
ten (10) days of OSS and thirteen (13) days of ISS (23 days total) while atten;ﬁgﬁgﬂl\/l}lrrah High
School. As a result of C.O.’s behavioral issues, he was referred to Cap%ta‘%l City” ¢ Alternative
School on two (2) different occasions for 45 days each during i€school- -years, C.O. received an
additional eight (8) days of OSS and two (2) days of ISS durfiag his two placements at Capital
City Alternative School. Cumulatively, C.O. received 18- daysziggf OSS and 15 days of ISS
resulting in a loss of 33 days of instruction. Unbelievably, JPSS félled to provide any related
services to C.O. to address his behavioral difficulties during the 2009-10 school-year. Instead of
prov1d1ng C.O. with desperately needed related services, JPSS again chose to repeatedly punish
him via OSS, ISS and placement in its alte f"%’cwe school. JPSS’ essentially indifferent and
punishing behavior towards C.O. reflects a ¢ 'if*dgmél .0 FAPE

C.0.’s latest re-evaluation which was conducted in ; :,nl 2010 reaffirms that C.O. has persistent
and significant behavioral 1ssuesg Some of the ﬁndmgs include C.O. almost always defies
authority; almost always is impdlSive (acts or talks without thinking); has significant problems
with attention, social skills and oppesitional behavior; uses poor judgment; cannot control
temper-blows up over the least thmg?%%%ears and uses obscene language and is repeatedly in
trouble.

Despite C.O.’s lengthy discipline history in 2009-10 and the numerous above findings in his
recent re—evalyat' his IEP for 2010-11 (completed on May 24, 2010) fails to include any
related servwes ilure constitutes another denial of FAPE.

5.

Petitioner A.L. is the only Petitioner who has been provided related services by JPSS during the
2009-2010 school-year. Unfortunately, the level of related services provided A.L. has been
woefully inadequate in light of her extensive and significant behavioral challenges.

A.L. was originally evaluated and found eligible for IDEA services as a student with an
Emotional Disability in late May 2008. As her evaluation noted:

? Not surprisingly C.O. had numerous behavior and discipline problems in 2007-08 which necessitated two
Manifestation Determination Reviews (MDRs) for serious discipline infractions.
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When we got to the question about feeling sad, I (evaluator) asked her what made her sad.
She began to tell me about her best friend who died in a house fire at Christmas when they were
both five years old. Even though she is currently 15 and this has been 10 years ago, she wept as
if this had happened yesterday.... After further questions and discussion she told me she was also
sad because students call her names about being overweight. She also stated she was sad
because she acts without thinking and fights with other people. She said she really doesn’t want
to fight, but she ends up in a fight before she really has time to think about the cpnsequence She
told me that she does ‘stuff that I know is not right’ but can’t seem to do betterd"

After meeting with A.L., the evaluator concluded by stating: :

“This child is preczous’ She cried the entire time I spent wztﬁzy;her which was close to one
hour. Even though the actual results [on the Reynolds Adolescente@e@fesszon Scale 2d Edition)
do not indicate significant scores in depression, the conversation I ha %

Other important findings in A.L.’s evaluation that obv10us1y flow from the above types of
feelings are as follows: N

A.L. almost always cries with minimal pze tion, or cause. She always exhlblts
moods of unhappiness or depression and is a loner an 1ES:,
[sic] is interrupted. The Acters Rating ScaleHome Version revealed that A.L. almost always
defies authority; almost always is impulsiv ;@c’cs “and, talks without thinking; almost never
skillful at making new friends. The Acters Ratin caég,— School Version found that A.L. also
defies authority; sometime picks on others; does not ,ellow group and social rules; is not skillful
at making new friends. The Differential test of Conduct and Emotional Problems found serious
emotional problems including A“é feels inferior, says she is not as good as others; chronic
moods of unhappiness and depression; disruptive, tendency to be disobedient and defiant of
authority. The Devereux Scales of tal Disorders-Adolescent Form found that A.L. has
several significant behaw’goral issues related to; conduct, anxiety, depression, externalizing and
internalizing comp051tes (related to her state of psychological well being).

Finally, A.L.’s Beha or Logs“that were kept for a number of weeks in the spring of 2008
preceding her evaluatloﬁ\reﬂected numerous serious behavior issues and problems at school
including: mood swings; became tearful and sat at table alone; sat in a daze with hand on her
headjérefused to respond to teacher requests and directions; sat with a group but covered her face;
fell ésleep in class; appeared withdrawn unless arguing with others; did not complete
ignments; appears she has been suspended 25 to 30 days this school-year.

Despite the sngmﬁcant nature of the behavioral findings noted in her evaluation, JPSS’ IEP
Committee recommended the related service of social work consultation'* but only for a

10 gee Page 9 of A.L.’s Psychometrist Report dated May 20, 2008.

1 Jd. at Page 9.

12 1¢°s not clear if social work consultation resulted in the provision of direct social work services to A.L. or simply
involved the Social Worker checking with A.L. and her teachers re her behavioral progress every two weeks.
Regardless, the level of social work related service was severely deficient.



nominal amount - twice a month for 30 minutes each session for a total of 1 hour per month."?
This level of related services proved to be woefully inadequate as A.L. was repeatedly
disciplined during the first six weeks of the 2008-09 school-year receiving 10 days of OSS by
September 25, 2008. Shortly thereafter, A.L. was removed from Jim Hill High School and
transferred to JPSS’ alternative school, CCAS. By November 2008, A.L.’s behavioral issues
were so significant that she was placed in CARES Day Treatment where she remained for the
rest of the 2008-09 school-year.

Although JPSS increased the amount of related services provided to A.L. for the 2009-10 school-
year, such services were not provided regularly and were still obviously insufficient in light of
her numerous, ongoing behavioral issues/problems. Indeed, at the start of the 2009-10 school-
year, A.L. was placed again at CCAS, where she remained until fégtember 29, 2009, when she
returned to Wingfield ngh School.  A.L. continued to+haye numerous behavioral
issues/problems at school'* and on January 19, 2010, she was involyed in another discipline
incident that resulted in her being transferred back to CCAS. In late March, she entered the
Career Academic Placement Program where JPSS fayled to provide A%L with any related
services. A little more than a month later, in May 2010, ‘She was involved in another discipline
incident that resulted in her being transferred to JPSS@altem\% school, CCAS, for a third time
during the 2009-10 school-year. A.L.’s 2009-10 d1sc1‘plm%é%s ory clearly reflects that she was
not provided with sufficient levels of related services, for her behavior only deteriorated
throughout the course of the year. As a result, JPSS clearly%emed AL.FAPE. B

4 L Y
B. JPSS Has Violated IDEA’s D1sc1§1me Pr0v1smns
*@%

1. JPSS’ Practices re Conductmg FBAs /and

eveloping BIPs are Fundamentally Flawed

JPSS’ professional prac ‘regarding conducting FBAs and developing BIPs are
fundamentally flawed in several respects and this has resulted in systemic deficiencies in the
FBAs and BIPs provided the Petitioners and the previously defined class. The evidence of
these syste%ﬂaws is found in the attached report from Dr. Brad Dufrene of the University
of Southem Mississippi. Recently, Petitioners’ counsel asked Dr. Dufrene to review two of
the Petitioners (C~ and P.A.’s) FBAs and multiple BIPs from the past three years. An
1 of all & SlX Petitioners’ FBAs and BIPs reflects that they are all quite similar in
format and substince and thus C.O.’s and P.A.’s FBAs and BIPs were provided to Dr.
Dufrene as a representative sample.

13 1t also represents an average of only 15 minute per week.

14.See intermittent behavior logs maintained for A.L. during the 209-10 school-year.

'3 Petitioner P.A. has also not been provided any related services to address his long history of behavioral concerns
which have necessitated six different hospitalizations over the past three years - Brentwood Behavioral Healthcare:
December 26, 2006 through January 6, 2007;Brentwood Behavioral Healthcare; January 27, 2008 through February
6, 2008; Alliance Health Center: May 30, 2008 through June 20, 2008; Alliance Health Center: January 5, 2009
through February 6, 2009; Brentwood Behavioral Healthcare: November 5, 2009 through November 20, 2009;
Alliance Health Center: March 2, 2010 through April 1, 2010.
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Dr. Dufrene’s review of the above FBA’s and BIPs resulted in a number of thth disturbing
and systemic findings/deficiencies regarding both the FBAs and BIPs.'® Some of Dr..
Dufrene’s major findings are as follows:

1. A total of six FBAs were reviewed and some specific problems were identified as well
as general problems across all FBAs. The following concerns were noted:

a. All six FBAs include a checklist for indicating which FBA methods (e.g.,
interview, records review) were used during the assessment process. Every FBA
indicates that all methods were used for each assessment'i#However, there is no
supporting documentation that demonstrates any of thoses ds were used.
For example, the FBAs do not include observation results«?@”?} identification of
specific individuals reporting functionally grelated 1nformat10n during a
functional assessment interview. Therefofejathe extent to’ which all FBA
methods were used across all assessmentsiis q&v' tionable. A professionally
appropriate FBA must include multiple measures ding, but not limited to,

interviews, direct observations, and review of relevant records. Unfortunately,

the JPSS FBAs fail to convincingly demonstrate that multiple measures were

indeed collected.

b. The functional hypotheses pro:é;f d in the FBA include functional hypotheses .
that are not supported by the emp al“"i?BA literature. For example, the FBAs
include non-emplmcally supported functions such as peer acceptance, affiliation,
approval justices" ‘teyenge, and control. Moreover, both students’ FBAs identify

“expression of self-set ry stimulation” as a function of off- task behavior. This
is noteworthy in th

typlcallaf%developmg stu?lents engaging in high incidence problem behaviors
(e. g- off task behav1or) Given the lack of evidence for a variety of empmcally

Across all six of the FBAs that were reviewed, no baseline data are presented
for any of the targeted behaviors for reduction of desired replacement
behaviors. Baseline data are essential for initial intervention planning and
icvaluating students’ response to a BIP. For example, baseline data may be used
_to select initial behavioral criterion for reinforcement. When baseline data are
= not available, initial behavioral criterion may be arbitrary and the quality of
behavioral programming is greatly diminished. In the FBAs and BIPs reviewed,
goals for each student include expecting 15 minutes of on-task behavior.
However, it is unclear if the goal is appropriate, because no data are provided
regarding students’ baseline performance for on-task or off-task behavior.

16 Dr. Dufrene’s Report is attached as Exhibit B.
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d. C.O. and P.A. experienced three FBAs each over a nearly three year period. It is
alarming to note that each FBA is nearly identical to the previous one. Given the
natural variability in student behavior, especially across long time periods and
multiple settings, one would expect that behaviors, triggers, and re-enforcers
would vary. However, the summary statements in the students’ FBAs are nearly
identical despite being conducted over nearly three years and across multiple
settings and persons.!” As a result, the reliability and validity of these FBAs is
questionable. # .

2. The BIPs provided by JPSS include some substantial concerns worth “hoting.
particular, (a) the BIPs are not directly linked to the/ﬁFBAs, (b) do not provide
sufficient detail for implementation, (c) include sfecommendations that are

contraindicated given content of the FBAs, (d) fail to inch ide data demonstrating

intervention implementation, (e) lack data demonstrating th: t.IEP team members

objectively evaluated C.O. and P.A.’s respons¢ to mterventmn%rocedures and (f)

were not meaningfully revised despite é‘@‘ and P.A.’s non-response to

intervention. These issues are expanded gémbplow
%@vﬁ%f{

a. As noted previously, most of the BIP?%re not directly linked to the FBAs. For
example, the BIPs indicate escape and a\\f%o;lﬁance functions for some targeted
problem behaviors. H@&ever the BIPs do not include specific plans for
eliminating escape and’ avoidasiee for problem behavior while providing escape
and avoidance for é%%%@pnate replacement behaviors. As a result, there is no

link between the FBAs an%%P syand the BIPs are likely not being effective as a

result.

%y JPSS do not include the details necessary for accurate
Arofess1onally appropriate BIPs include enough detaﬂ that an

.,.x

N the plan. As a result, it. 1s doubtful that this plan could be
#“*.  implemented with much consistency across multiple staff members.

The current BIP does not include details related to the. person or persons
sresponsible for implementation of the plan. Failure to designate persons
responsible for implementation typically results in diffusion of responsibility.

17 petitioners would also note that P.A.’s original 10/30/07 FBA/BIP and C.O.’s original 9/21/07 FBA/BIP contain
the same three replacement behavior objectives and more than two-thirds of the same preventive/teaching
strategies. These same replacement strategies and preventive/teaching strategies were maintained for both P.A. and
C.0. in each of their next two FBAs/BIPs (P.A. — 10/23/08 and 5/14/10; C.O.- 1/27/09 and 11/20/09) confirming Dr.
Dufrene’s finding that each of their FBAs/BIPs is nearly identical to previous versions and (Petitioners would add)
nearly identical amongst these two completely different students.
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Some of the intervention recommendations in each of the BIPs are
contraindicated given information included in the FBAs. All FBAs for C.O. and
P.A. identify escape and avoidance functions for some problem behaviors.
However, BIPs call for suspending students for violating school rules. Such a
recommendation is contraindicated because suspending the students would allow
for escape and avoidance of the school environment, which would reinforce and
strengthen those behaviors.

Some specific intervention procedures for C.O. are worth deta111ng First, C.O.’s
BIP from 9/21/07 included the following intervention comipenent: “work detail-
under adult supervision student is required to do a specific ot.cleaning task
appropriate to the offense, school administration and parenti;féonse is strongly

154 en that C.O. would
be requlred to engage in manual labor at 1 that would result in loss of
access to the benefits of his IEP. Second, Ci0.’sBIP dated 11/20/2009 includes
using access to reading instruction as an 1ncentrxv<%g@,¢for C.O. to engage in
appropriate behavior. C.O. is a student with a Specific' Learning Disability in the
areas of Basic Reading and Reading comprehension, and it appears that school
personnel are suggesting that access to reading instruction be made contingent
upon appropriate behavior. This is obviously mappropnate and should not have
been included in the BIP,

re: f documentation demonstrating intervention
1mplementat103 In fact“fi@o pelgmanent products were provided demonstrating
implementation 1'of P.A.’S Bﬁ“l'}s As a result there is liftle confidence that BIPs
were impl teg&as planned.

The records pro d | by JPSS do not demonstrate that the IEP teams objectively
monitored C.O.’s a:nd P.A.’s response to intervention. Specifically, no graphs
were provided that included daily behavior rating sheet scores or data from
observations. Therefore, it is doubtful that the students’ response to their
s objectively evaluated.

d P.A. failed to respond to mterven‘uon as evidenced by placement in
restnctlve educational settings. However, over a three year period, their BIPs
were not revised in any meaningful way such that it could be reasonably
expected that their behavior would improve substantially.  Failure to
meaningfully revise their BIPs and lack of data demonstrating plan
implementation likely explain a great deal of their continued behavioral
difficulties.
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Dr. Dufrene’s above findings manifest that JPSS has provided the Petitioners and the previously
defined class of similarly situated students with inappropriate and ineffective FBAs and BIPs and
this has resulted in additional systemic denials of FAPE. 34 C.F.R. 300.17, 530.

2. JPSS Has Systemically Failed to Appropriately and Meaningfully Update and Revise
Petitioners BIPs in Contravention of IDEA’s Mandates

IDEA’s regulations state that whenever an IEP team conducts a Manifestation Determination
Review (MDR) and determines that a student’s conduct is a manifestation of’ his/her d1sab111ty,
the team must review any previously drafted BIP and modify it as necessary to; ddress the
behavior in question. 34 C.F.R. 300.530(f) (1) (ii). As specifically delinéated in D; D
Report, JPSS fails to revise students’ BIPs “in any meaningful way suchfhat it ould be
reasonably expected that their behavior would improve substantially. Failure to meamngfully
revise their BIPs and lack of data demonstrating plan 1mplemen‘f§’t10n likely explam a great deal
of their continued behavioral difficulties.” Although Dr. lgu « e s comments were directed to
C.O. and P.A., they are also clearly applicable to each of the other Petitioners as evidenced by
their numerous behavior incidents, suspensions and MDRs for e nfially similar behaviors.
JPSS’ systemic, ongoing failure to modify Petitioners BIPs to address presenting discipline
behaviors is a violation of 34 C.F.R. 300.530(f) 9%‘7) (i1).

3. JPSS Has Systemically Failed to Condu Mamfestatlon Determination Reviews in

Conformance with IDEA’s Mandates

There are specific requirements that govern Mamfestatlon Determination Reviews (MDR) under
IDEA’s Discipline Procedures. The@;&DEA MDR regulation states:

W
(e) Manifestation determmatlon {%1 -

(1) Within 10 school day “of any decision to change the placement of a child with a disability
because of a V1olaﬁ®n" of student conduct, the LEA, the parent/guardian, and relevant
members of the ch11d°~s IEP “Team (as determined by the parent/guardian and the LEA) must
review all relevant mformatzon in the student’s file, including the child’s IEP, any teacher
observat;ons and any relevant information provided by the parent/guardians to determine--
i)»““If the conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and substantial relatlonshlp
i to, the child’s disability; or

If the conduct in question was the direct result of the LEA’s failure to implement the
IEP/

(2) The Ct must be determined to be a manifestation of the child’s disability if the LEA, the
parent, and relevant members of the child’s IEP Team determine that a condition in either
paragraph (e)(1)(i) or (1)(ii) of this section was met.

(3) If the LEA, the parent, and relevant members of the child’s IEP Team determine the
condition described in paragraph (e) (1) (i) of this section was met, the LEA must take
immediate steps to remedy those deficiencies. 34 C.F.R. 300.530(¢)
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A review of the multiple MDRs conducted for the Petitioners reveals that JPSS has not ensured
that IEP teams review “all relevant information in a student’s file” and this includes the Present
Levels of (behavior) Performance found on the first page of the IEP as well as any annual social
goals; a student’s original evaluation which sets forth the defining behaviors and characteristics
of the student’s disability; any re-evaluations that contains updated behavioral information; any
FBAs or BIPs for a student; any anecdotal information provided by a parent/guardian as well as
any written information from community mental health providers and 1n—pat1ent mental health
facilities. Too often, it appears that MDR decisions are based on the opinions“ofithe present IEP
team members. Although opinions are valuable and need to be considered they are not a
substitute for a review of all relevant information in a student’s file. This is particularh
considering that some of the IEP teams’ members voicing oplmonséggre the very individuals who

A

want a student disciplined and removed from the school environtme .,t in the first place (e.g a

oha'

rulings that a Petitioner’s behavior was not a manifestation of hls/her% i
school record clearly reflected it was a manifestation. %{

Two examples of such erroneous manifestation rulings.are as\ﬂfe.,llows: On January 19, 2010, A.L.

.. 7. . . & e .

was disciplined for the following behaviors- creating awdisturbanice in the classroom/on campus;
refusing to surrender a cell phone; insubordination; intimidation/bullying; verbal
communication involving threatening a student. A.L. was récommended for expulsion and thus
an IEP meeting was scheduled for J anuary29, 2010 to conduct an MDR. A.L.’s parent received
written notice of the Manifestation R»fééwew and. the JPSS form notice contained a section that
listed numerous student records that yé%\hld be reviewed and had checks by those that would be
reviewed. Remarkably, the student ree% ds sectlon of the form does not include records
involving a student’s initi lfevalua‘uon re Ma’luatlons or BIPs. Moreover, in this particular
instance, the box on the fo: ‘Personality Assessment” was not checked despite the fact that

A.L.’s disability classificationtsiEmotional Disability.

, at the outset both of A.L.’s teachers reported that her attendance was
discuss her behavior.”® The MDR Form from the meeting also notes
‘ v of explosive incidents. The minutes from the meeting also include a
statement from"acomimittee member that A.L. “was explosive and profane as she ran from the
building and off campus. 1% Even in light of the above information, the Committee mexplicably
decided over the mother’s objection that A.L.’s behavior was not a manifestation of her disability
stating “student’s actions during this incident were different than in other explosive situations
due to extended time and sequence of actions.”

The above information was more than sufficient to find that A.L.’s behavior during the incident
was a manifestation of her disability. However, if the Committee had actually reviewed all

18 See MDR Review Form dated 1/29/10
19 See TEP Documentation Form dated 1/29/10
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relevant information in A.L’s file (including her initial evaluation and BIP) they would have
immediately found evidence of a clear relationship between her behavior and her disability. As
previously detailed in Section IA above, A.L.’s initial evaluation contains the following
behavioral information:

A.L. almost always defies authority; almost always is impulsive, acts and talks
without thinking, almost never skillful at making new friends. A.L. also defies authority, picks on
others; does not follow group and social rules; is not skillful at making new friends. A.L. has
serious emotional problems including A.L. feels inferior, says not as good as others; chronic
moods of unhappiness and depression,; disruptive, tendency to be disobedient and defiant of
authority.

A.L.’s BIP dated August 29, 2009 states on the first page that her farg f«%behavmrs are:

inappropriate expressions of anger and frustration (loud outburst and ‘énes Wlth minimal
provocation); defies authority; inappropriate peer interaction. & fe. BIP also states that A.L. has
poor impulse control, and when situations do not meet her expectations, she percelves that others
have mistreated or wronged her and that when A.L. perceﬁ{}es thatyshe has been treated unfairly
or disrespected she will lash out verbally in an attempt to gain respe Stand seek her own form of
justice to rectify the situation. Finally, it also states that when having " to interact with peers she

may respond inappropriately in order to gain contzt,ol.

The above extensive and severe behavioral v
question and the five code of conduct offenses“%t afc A L allegedly committed. An objective
review of this documented behavioral informationdgafi lead to only one conclusion - A.L.’s
behavior was a clear manifestation of her disability.

The second erroneous Manifestation/Review involves C.O. and an incident that occurred on
October 14, 2009, wherein he allegedlyiverbally assaulted a teacher in the cafeteria and then
cursed at a security guard and an administrator when they approached. At the Manifestation
Determination Review the Committee again failed to review C.O.’s initial evaluation. It also
failed to critically review his current FBA and BIP. Instead, it simply held, over his mother’s
objections pluse that of C.0.’s advocate, and JPSS’ own employee, Dr. Loretta Smith, that his
behavior ¢ Vl{;S notecaused by the disability of SLD.”?° Significantly, the minutes from the
meeting state.that “Dr.Loretta Smith suggested that C.O. does have a history of ADHD and that
she had pro g that C.0O.’s behavior was not directly and substantially related to
C.O.’s disabil

The above circumstances reflect that a portion of the Committee illegally made its decision
based upon the generic definition of SLD rather than the specific and individualized behaviors of

2 Approximately half of the Manifestation Determination Review Committee believed that C.0.’s behavior was
related to his disability yet the Committee still held it was not related. Petitioners wonder if this issue was decided
by an illegal vote of the Committee. JPSS cannot assert that the Committee agreed that C.O.’s behavior was “not
related” because there was NO agreement. See MDR Form dated 10/21/09 and JEP Meeting Documentation Form
also dated 10/21/09.
?! See TEP Documentation Form dated 10/21/09
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C.O. that had been documented in his records as functions of his disability. C.O.’s 2007 re-
evaluation emphasized that C.O. “cannot control temper; ‘bDlows up’ over the least thing; uses
poor judgment, will do or say anything on impulse; is disruptive; tendency to be disobedient and
defiant of authority, gets very upset when criticized or makes mistakes. The Committee
conveniently, yet inexcusably, failed to review this longstanding, documented 1nformat1on—
information that irrefutably reflects that C.O.’s behavior was a manifestation of his disability.”

JPSS’ actions were thus in clear violation of IDEA’s regulatory requirements. 34 C.F.R.
300.530 (e) ¢

In light of the two above examples of erroneous and illegal MDR rulings JPSS must estabhsh a
written process that articulates the types of student records that are always relevant t6sar
(e.g. a student’s initial evaluation; any re-evaluations that include updated behavioral
information; current IEP; any current FBA and BIP' behavior logs<and discipline referrals from

furnished at the district’s request) and must be rev1e&yved at every MDR. JPSS also must
establish written procedures to address and resolve disa“ reements amongst MDR Committee

Finally, Petitioners also believe that JPSS ne%er exammes the second required component of a
MDR involving whether the conduct in q es &onfwas a direct result of the LEA’s failure to
implement the IEP and in particular the LEA s faglure t 1mplemenz any BIP with integrity and
fidelity. See 34 C.F.R. 300.530(e) (1) (ii). AlthoughiasBIP is a component of a student’s IEP, a
review of countless JPSS MDR mlings involving Petitioners reflect that JPSS personnel only
examine whether the student has5%@,BIP and rarely if ever examine whether the BIP has been
implemented with integrity and fidelity. This systemic failure constitutes another major

violation of IDEA’s regulatory require% *nts 34 C.F.R. 300.530(e) (1) (ii). z

terroneous MDR ruling involving C.O. In April of 2008 and December of 2008,

(approximately 8 and 15 m\gnths afteriC.0.’s 2007 Re-evaluation) MDR Committees made egregious and patently
erroneous decisions. In the first instance, the Committee’s appalling ruling was based C.O.’s failure to take his
medication. In the second 1nst§‘nce the committee’s ruling stemmed from C.O.’s involvement in a fight with
another student wherein the Committee ignored the following statement in C.O.’s 2007 re-evaluation- “C.O.
s'starts fights with others without being provoked.” See Page 2 of 2007 Re-evaluation. Inboth of
sstances C.O. was pumshed for behavmr clearly related to his d1sab111ty and was transferred to JPSS’

5 nsaltematwe school setting for behavior that does not involve Weapons/Drugs/Serious Bodily Injury
and which has been determined to be a Manifestation of a Petitioner’s Disability. The Manifestation Determination
Review provisions under IDEA’s Discipline Procedures also include the following requirements;

(f) Determination that behavior was a manifestation. If the LEA, the parent/guardian, and relevant members of
the IEP Team make the determination that the conduct was a manifestation of the child’s disability, the IEP Team
must--

(1) Either—

(i) Conduct a functional behavioral assessment, unless the LEA had conducted a functional behavioral assessment
before the behavior that resulted in the change of placement occurred, and implement a behavioral intervention plan
for the child; or
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C. JPSS Has Failed to Confer Meaningful Educational Benefit

JPSS has denied Petitioners A.M., E.H., T.A., A.L., C.O., P.A., and the previously defined class
of all other similarly situated students FAPE by providing Petitioners and all other similarly
situated students with an education that has failed to confer meaningful educational benefit as
required by IDEA. The pervasive reality for a significant portion of Emotionally Disturbed
students and the other members of the defined class is that even though they are of average
intelligence, by the time they reach middle school, they are typically performing years behind
their chronological grade level and that of their peers. One result is that Emotionally Disturbed
students and other students with significant behavioral issues are typically placed in restrictive
self-contained settings and this leads to an almost non-existent H‘ii’ih School Diploma rate for
such students, which is the ultimate evidence of lack of meamngful* :ducational benefit. This
reality reflects the systemic practice of providing inappropriate special <edgca‘uon and related
services to Emotlonally Disturbed students and the other rg\embers of the defined class.

1. Petitioner A.M.

(ii) If a behavioral intervention plan already hassbe veloped, review the behavioral intervention plan, and
modify it, as necessary, to address the behav1§1;, and
(2) Except as provided in paragraph (g) of th1§%§§;éci1on, retmgn the child to the placement from which the child
was removed, unless the parent/guz/trdlan and th’”‘%LEA Aagree to a change of placement as part of the
modification of the behavioral intérvention plan.
Petitioners contend that JPSS’ comt 1stent1y tells parent/guardians in the above situations that the IEP team is
recommending placement at the aﬁem ve:school and requests their consent. JPSS however never informs
parent/guardians that in light of the MDR decision their son/daughter has a right to return to his /her home school.
JPSS thus fails to fully inform parent/guatdians of all the information related to its request for consent to
transferring a student to an alternative scho6] by invariably obtaining parental consent in such a surreptitious
manner, JPSS has systemically denied parent/guardians their right to give informed consent in clear violation of

,,effo:f” 7

IDEA’s procediral safe

The comsent reguired by parent/guardians in the context of a change in educational placement is one that is
informed. 20US:C §1415€3)(2) of IDEA and the corresponding regulations (34 C.F.R. § 300.500) stipulate that
state educational ageno;es*must fully explain the procedural safeguards as it relates to, among other areas, “parental
consent”. The Mississippi Department of Education states that consent means “(1) you [the parent] have been fully
informed ...of all the information about the action for which you are giving consent; (2) you understand and agree in
writing to that action...and (3) you understand that the consent is voluntary and you may withdraw your consent at
any time.””  Additionally, courts have stated that in the context of 34 C.ER. § 300.500(b), “the definition of
consent requires that, in relation to the activity for which consent is sought, the parent be fully informed, agree in
writing, and understand that consent is voluntary and may be revoked.” Stanley C. v. M.S.D. of Southwest Allen
County Schools, 628 F. Supp. 2d 902, 949 (N.D. Ind. 2008). JPSS has thus systemically failed to obtain such
informed consent in the above defined circumstances involving the Petitioners and the previously defined class of
similarly situated students.
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Petitioner A.M. has not been able to make any meaningful academic or non-academic
(behavioral) progress the past three years since being found eligible for IDEA services in
October 2007. Academically, Petitioner A.M. is performing several years behind his peers.
During the 2007-08 school-year, A.M. received all Ds in his five course subjects.”* During the
2008-09 school-year A.M. received one C and four Ds in his five course subjects.”> During the
2009 -10 school-year, A.M. received one C, two Ds and one F in his four course subjects.26

AM.’s annual IEP updates from the past three years also manifest the following lack of
academic progress:

a. his present levels of performance (PLOP) at the start of the 2008-09 school-year for
is fall 2007 initial
nfirmed by his

%

reading and math were exactly the same as his PLOPs in these two areasm:?g;n
IEP. A.M. thus made no progress in these two core subject areas and this onfinn
above grades. and

b. his PLOP in reading at the start of the 2009-2010 sch%&@“f%year is exacf’tsgﬁ the same as his
PLOP in reading at the start of the upcoming 2010-11 schoq};-‘%%;;&” Once again this reflects that
A.M. made no progress in this critical core subject during%the Z@%IO school year and this is
confirmed by the above grades. ' , W

The bottom-line is that A.M. has made little or ne,academic progress the past three years and is

consequently 2-3 years behind his chronolog;g%ﬂ@}gra%‘c\a level and peers.

Additionally, as was discussed in detail in Sec ons Li&ff%and IC, AM. has made little or no
behavioral progress the past three years and this isgrrfﬁcularly true in the past year (2009-10)
when A.M. was placed in JPSS’ aﬁgsemative school (CCAS) on three different occasions®- two of
which were within the first three“ménths of school for discipline infractions.
i

During the past three years, JPSS has failed to provide A.M. with appropriate special education
and related services todddress his academic deficits and behavioral challenges. Instead, JPSS
has engaged in the discriminatory practice of repeatedly suspending A.M. which has engendered
a substantial loss @’ff\: metion time. As a result of JPSS’ failures, Petitioner A.M. has not been
able to make any mea%ing “4cademic and non-academic (behavioral) progress for the past
several years. This has éﬁgggdered a clear denial of FAPE. See Board of Education of Hendrick
Central School Dist. v. ]i?o"wley, 458 U.S. 176, 200-201 (1982); Cypress-Fairbanks ISD v.

Michgel' T, 118 F.3d 245, 253-254 (5th Cir. 1997).

tioner E:H.

24 AM. received Ds for reading, language arts, math, science, and social studies.
25 A M. received a C in reading and Ds in language arts, math, science, and social studies
26 A M. received a C in science, Ds in math, and social studies and an F in language arts. Petitioners also believe
that his language arts course subject now includes reading. Throughout the past three years while A.M. received
special education services he received two Ds and an F in language arts; 3 Ds in math and social studies; Ds in
science for two of the three years and one C, 2 D, and an F in reading.
?7 See A.M.’s annual IEP update for the 2010-2011 school-year .
2 Each placement in CCAS was for 45 days.
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Petitioner E.H. has made no meaningful academic progress the past several years. His initial
evaluation completed in October 2005 states that his reading skills were at a 1.3 grade level and
his math skills were between a 2.8-3.5 grade level. A full three years later, his annual IEP for the
2008-09 school-year (completed May 12, 2008) reflects that his reading skills were at a 2.3 grade
level and his math skills were at a 2.6 grade level. During this three year period, E.H. increased
his reading skills by only 1 grade level and his math skills actually decreased (regressed) from
2.8-3.5 grade level to a 2.6 grade level.”? Presently, after five full years of IDEA services, E.H.
is reading at approx1mate1y a 4th grade level which is five years behind his chr@nologlcal grade
level. The same is true for his math skills. Indeed E.H.’s final grades for 'ch‘éi st schoo]-year
(2009- 10) reflect that he made no academic progress. E.H. received 1 D and 5 “h@m h1§%core
subJects

Furthermore, as previously discussed in Section IB, E.H. during 009-2010 school-year was
often removed from his regular education classes at Hardy Middle Schael and illegally placed in
a self-contained setting for much of the school day’! because the teacher‘does not want students
with disabilities in his classroom “slowing everyone downs” As a result, heiis consistently losing
access to instruction in the general education cumculquud falling further and further behind

academically.

3. Petitioner T.A.

Petitioner T.A. also has made no meaningful academic or behav1or progress the past several
years. T.A. was initially evaluated and found%}%glble for IDEA services in April 2002. He has
consequently been receiving spec1eﬁ§%ducatlon iservices for eight years. The past five years
T.A.’s final grades clearly reﬂect as mg 1ack of academic progress: His grades are as

follows:

2007- 08 :1C and% Ds mghls 5 courses
2008- 09553' Iszinsall ofthis courses
2009-10: 2 Ds and s in his 5 courses

o e o

Sadly, W%A s final grades the past five years reflect that he has earned 2Cs, 11Ds and 13Fs. His
lack of* academic progress is beyond pronounced. Moreover, T.A.’s reading skills have actually

reasoﬁs E.H. made so little academic progress is that JPSS consistently failed to align his academic
goals and ebjectives with his actual present levels of performance —e.g. during the 2008-09 school -year, his IEP
academic goals involve E.H. learning the 6th grade Mississippi curriculum framework competencies even though
his reading and math skills are only at a 2.3 and 2.6 grade level. E.H. was thus subject to course work that was way
beyond his current skill levels. Such inappropriate action (bordering on educational abuse) was unfortunately not
limited to the 2008-09 school-year but has persisted for several years. See Section IE for a thorough discussion of
JPSS’ systemic failure to align Petitioners academic goals with their actual present levels of academic performance.
30 B H. received a D in eastern hemisphere geography and Fs in math, language arts, cpns math, career discovery and
science.

3! These illegal removals are not documented by E.H.’s teacher or the administration at Hardy Middle School and
such removals are not countenanced by E.H.’s IEP.
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regressed during this same five year period. T.A.’s May 12, 2005 annual IEP lists his PLOP in
reading at a 1.5 grade level. T.A.’s May 24, 2010 annual IEP states that he reads at a 1.3 grade
level. Remarkably after 5 years of special education services his May 2010 IEP states that T.A.
“is borderline between a nonreader and a struggling reader.” T.A. has also made little or no
progress in his other academic subjects as confirmed by his above grades.

Even a cursory review of T.A.’s annual [EPs Summaries of Present Levels of Performance
reflects that T.A. has significant behavior issues that have continued for years. His May 16,
2008 annual IEP states in the Summary of PLOP that “he is highly aggressive, acts impulsively,
and shows a blatant disrespect for authority. In many cases, he lacks self control and must be
removed and placed in an alternative setting.” T.A.’s May 14, 2009 antigal IEP Summary of
PLOP contains the exact same behavior language and then adds “T.A. has ea‘t, mguonal and
behavioral difficulties.” His May 24, 2010 annual IEP Summary of PLOP em,t’aﬂs essentially the
same behavior language re: impulsivity, oppositional, and deﬁan ehavior and also contains the

exact same behavior language re: T.A. having “great emot1on‘ﬁl and behavioral difficulties.”

The above discussion combined with the detailed discussion of“»l“% s discipline history in
Section IC reflects that T.A. has made little or no behavioral progress the past several years.
This was particularly true during the 2009-10 school-year when T.A. had numerous behavior
incidents and discipline infractions the first six weeks of school which culminated in T.A. being
placed in an alternative school setting (CCAS) on October 2, 2009.

4, Petitioner P.A.

2
P.A.’s lack of academic progress is well ﬁ@c &nted During the 2006-2007 school-year, he did
not master any of his IEP @'{)JEctwes through the first three terms. P.A.’s 2008-2009 IEP
reflected he was performing:on az@6th grade level in math and a 6th grade level in language—a
full three years behind his chroud] logical grade level and peers.

This past school-year (2009- 2010) A failed all of his subjects through the first three terms and
failed all but Qneyﬂof his subjects in the fourth term and thus ended up failing 9th grade. His IEP
for the 201@-2011‘*’ésch001 -year states he 1s being retained in 9th grade and reflects that he is

P.A’s lack of behavv@ral progress is thoroughly documented in his discipline history in Section
IC and is clearly attributable to JPSS’ abject failure to provide P.A.’s with related services and an
appropriate FBA and BIP. These failures also contributed significantly to P.A.’s lack of
academic progress which has left him several years behind his chronological grade level and that
of his peers.

5. Petitioner A.L.

A.L.’s lack of academic progress is well documented. A.L. has failed the vast majority of her
classes since 2008 and is currently several years behind her chronological grade level and peers.
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. language arts- 2.0 grade level.*2

Based on her age, she should be a 12th grader in the 2010-11 school-year. A.L.’s current
academic performance levels however are 6-7 years behind her chronological grade level as
evidenced by the following: Reading-4.9, Math Computation-4.8, Applied Math-5.0, and
Language-5.6.

A.L.’s lack of behavioral progress is extensively documented. During the 2008-2009 school-
year, A.L. received thirty one (31) days of OSS. A.L. was also placed in Capital City Alternative
School October 30, 2008 through November 14, 2008 for discipline issues. At»the start of the
2009-2010 school-year, A.L. was again placed in Capital City Alternative Seheol for 45 days
(August 17, 2009-September 28, 2009) for discipline issues. A.L. was placed a second tlme at
CCAS from February 22 2010 through March 30, 2010. A.L. was arreste ay 12““2 e

CCAS.

6. Petitioner C.O.

C.0O.’s lack of academic progress is likewise well docum%i’ited. is currently seven grade
levels behind in reading and six grade levels behind in math. C.O.” ) tgust 2007 re-evaluation
reflected the following results; reading-2.0 grade level; math-3.5 grade level; language arts 3.0
grade level. Three years later his March 20@§re-eva1uatlon reflects that C.O. has made no
academic progress and in fact has regresse‘,n twe core subject areas (reading and language
arts). The re-evaluation results are as follows; ré g" 16 grade level; math 3.0-3.8 grade level,

& ﬁ{;

C.0.’s lack of behavioral progressgs extensively documented. During the 2009-2010 school-
year, while attending Murrah HighSchool, C.O. received ten (10) days of OSS. C.O. also
received thirteen (13) days of ISS. %ﬁg}tlonally, while attending Murrah High School C.O.’s
mother was called to piek C.O. up fromgfé“’chool on a number of other occasions for behavioral
incidents. C.O. was als _referred to Cap1ta1 City Alternative School twice during 2009-10
. The first referral was from October 14, 2009 through
nd referral was from February 25, 2010 through the _end of the

2009-10 school year. Whlle attendmg Capital City Alternative School during the 2009-2010
school-year, C.O. rece1ved elght (8) days of OSS and two (2) days of ISS. In total, C.O. received
twenty-o:ﬂe (21) days of 0SS and fifteen (15 days) of ISS and more than four months of
placement i an alternative school setting during the 2009-10 school-year.

32 Like E.H. one of the primary reasons C.O. made so little academic progress the past three years is that JPSS
consistently failed to align his academic goals and objectives with his actual present levels of performance ~e.g.
C.0.’s 2009-2010 IEP goals state C.O. is to master 9™ grade reading objectives with 70% accuracy. This is a
completely inappropriate reading goal since his March 2010 re-evaluation clearly states that he is currently reading
on a 1.5 grade level.

26



meaningful educational benefit (FAPE) as required under IDEA. See Board of Education of
Hendrick Central School Dist. v. Rowley, 458 U.S. 176, 200-201 (1982); Cypress-Fairbanks ISD
v. Michael F., 118 F.3d 245, 253-254 (5th Cir. 1997); 34 C.F.R. § 300.39 (b)(3)(ii). Moreover,
this denial of FAPE is attributable to JPSS’ perennial failure to provide appropriate special
educational services, related services, FBAs, and BIPs to the Petitioners and the previously
defined class of similarly situated students.

D. JPSS has Failed to Comply with IDEA’s Procedural and Substantive’ Requirements

i

Governing the Development and Implementation of Individualized Educ. ”Uon Prog”rams
(IEPs) h

1. JPSS has systemically failed to properly alien Petitiogers’ academic goals and
objectives with their actual present levels of performance®2.

JPSS has denied Petitioners FAPE by its systemic failure to align IEP sH

term objectives and

B

annual goals with the present levels of academic perfo%ance (PLOP) articulated on the cover

&

page of IEPs.

Mississippi State Policies Regarding Children with%Disal ittes under the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act Amendments of 2004, Stategard Policy 7219, (Effective July 20,
2009) provides in §300.320(a) that a child’s individuaf§z€d education program (IEP) must
include “(1) A statement of the child’s present levels of academic achievement and functional
performance, including—(i) How the chﬂd"%%giisability affects the child’s involvement and
progress in the general education &é'%“%“}gulum ‘féle, the same curriculum as for nondisabled
children).” IDEA includes the same provi%i 3%%4 C.FR. §300.320(a) (1).
G,

i

The aforementioned State Policies require the present levels of academic achievement and
functional performance section of a child’s IEP to reflect the unique academic needs of the child
and require the development of annual goals and short-term objectives in the IEP based upon
these unique needs of the child. Moreover, in order to meet a student’s academic needs, a
student’s present levels of academic performance must serve as the basis/foundation for any
annual academic goals.

Remarkably, JPSS has repeatedly and systemically ignored this fundamental educational precept
and legal mandate. Over the past several years JPSS has failed to align several of the
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Petitioners’ annual goals with their actual levels of performance and instead has consistently
developed and implemented annual academic goals that are two-five years above and beyond
their present levels of academic performance. The obvious result previously detailed in Section
IC (Bducational Benefit) has been that Petitioners have made little or no academic progress for
years and their obvious academic frustrations have contributed to and engendered ongoing
behavioral issues.

Two examples reflect the breadth of JPSS’ systemic, fundamental failures in misaligning
Petitioners annual academic goals with their actual present level of academic performance.

E.H.’s academic history manifests JPSS’ failures in this area. During the -09 school -year,
his annual [EP academic goals state that E.H. will learn the 6th grade Mississippi

framework competencies even though his reading and math skills were listed oﬁ the PLOP
section of his IEP at only a 2.3 and 2.6 grade level respe/c&tz&ély His 2009 10 annual IEP
academic goals state that E.H. will learn the 7th grade,g»« issippi curriculum framework
competencies even though his reading skills were again listed on'the PLOP section of his IEP at
only a 3.2 grade level and after he had earned Fs in all of his cours Mb_]eCl‘S in 2008-09 school-
year. His 2010-11 annual IEP academic goals state that E.H. will learn the Sth grade Mississippi
curriculum framework competencies even thoughshis reading skills listed on the PLOP section of
his IEP at approximately a 4th grade level and after he had earned 2 Ds and 3 Fs in his five

;?

course subjects in 2009-10 school-year. 33

E.H. was thus subject to course work that was Wz y beyond his current sk111 levels. Such
shockingly inappropriate educatlonal practice (reﬂectlve of educational malpractice) ensured that
he would: N
a. fail the vast majority of his coure subjects for years;
b. experience years of daily academicifiustration
c. manifest ongoing and consequent behavioral issues.

T.A.’s academic history contains the same glaring misalignments of annual academic goals and
present leve%@;fjacademic performance. During the 2008-09 school-year, T.A.’s annual IEP
academic goals state that he will learn the 6th grade Mississippi curriculum framework

< ,_,gh his reading skills were listed on the PLOP section of his IEP at below
vel and hlS math skills at only a 3.0 grade level. Not surprisingly he failed to learn
these 6™ grade cu cuflum competencies. His 2009-10 annual IEP academic goals state that T.A.
will again learn the same 6th grade Mississippi curriculum framework competencies even though
his reading skills were listed on the PLOP section of his IEP at only a 2.3 grade level and despite
the following statement in the same PLOP section: T.A. “is borderline between a nonreader and

3% B H.’s 2006-07 annual IEP academic goals reflect the same misalignment stating he will learn the 4th grade
Mississippi curriculum framework competencies even though his reading skills were only at a 1.9 grade level and
after he had earned 1D and 5 Fs in Ais course subjects in 2005-06 school-year. Not surprisingly, E.H. was retained
in the 4th grade during the 2007-08 school-year.
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a struggling reader.” * T.A.’s grades in 2009-10 reflect the stunning inappropriateness of these
annual academic goals:

a. Reading— F

b. Language Arts — F

c. Math—F

d. Science - D

f. Social Studies — D

Thirty-six years after the passage of IDEA, it is difficult to imagine, much less"Comprehend, such
systemic and longstanding misaligning of students with disabilities present levels o1 Y
with their annual academic goals. It’s beyond poor educational practice and a clearidefiial of
FAPE-this practice effectively sentences students to years of daily educational ﬁ”ustrg?zon and
years of educational failure. It also effectively seizes and conden‘i{ he dreams of these same
Students.

2. JPSS has systemically failed to consider posmve behavioral mterventlons and
supports for Petitioners and the previously de’fined class of students who have
behavior marked as a ‘special factor’ on tlgelr%IEP

IDEA requires that:

(1) In developing each child’s IEP, the IEP '“a 1 .

(i) The strengths of the child (ii) The concerns of tl‘fé%péarents for enhancing the education of their
child (iii) The results of the initial or most recent évaluation of the child (iv) The academic,
developmental, and functional needs,of the child.

(2) Consideration of special factors. IEP Team must--

(i) In the case of a child whose behavioriimpedes the child’s learning or that of others, consider
the use of positive behavzoml interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that
behavior. 34 C.F. R 300 324(a) (D), (2).

IDEA also requlres tha\zn con‘yﬁuctzng a review of the child’s IEP, the IEP Team must consider
the special factors describ _Nm paragraph (a) (2) of this section. (34 C.F.R. §300.324(a) (2))

Each @f“‘fhe Petitioners has behavior checked as a Special Factor on their IEP. Despite this
a review of the IEP minutes from Petitioners multiple IEP meeting in both 2008-09 and
2 0 (mcludmg annual reviews) reflect that there is not a single instance wherein a
Petitioner’s IEP Committee considered or discussed the use of positive behavioral interventions
and support*(PBIS) much less added any specific positive behavior intervention and supports to

3* Similar to E.H. and T.A., C.O. also made little academic progress the past three years and one of the primary
reasons is that JPSS consistently failed to align his academic goals and objectives with his actual present levels of
academic performance —e.g. C.0.’s 2009-2010 IEP goals state C.O. is to master 9th grade reading objectives with
70% accuracy. This is a completely inappropriate reading goal since his March 2010 re-evaluation clearly states
that he is reading on a 1.5 grade level.
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an IEP. Although JPSS convened multiple IEP Committee Meetings during both of the above
school-years in response to discipline infractions committed by Petitioners and for the sole
purpose of changing a Petitioner’s placement to an alternative school setting, these same IEP
committees never once discussed implementing specific positive behavioral interventions and
supports to address present behaviors much less implementing PBIS in a Petitioner’s current
regular school setting, thus enabling him/her to avoid an alternative school placement.

JPSS’ above systemic disregard for the IDEA’s mandated consideration of PBIS at each and
every IEP meeting involving the Petitioners and all other similarly situated students who have
behavior checked as a Special Factor on their IEP constitutes a clear and systemic denial of
FAPE. 34 C.F.R. § 300.324(a) (2), (b) (1) (2).

3. JPSS has systemically failed to meet and revise Petitioner‘ﬁééia;gd the previously defined
class of students TEPs to address a lack of academic and/or behavioral progress

IDEA also requires that:

(1) Each public agency must ensure that... the IEP Feam R,
(i) Reviews the child’s IEP periodically, but not Tessat an%ﬁ@ﬂy, to determine whether the
annual goals for the child are being achieved; and %’%&

(i) Revises the IEP, as appropriate, to address- *g“’”

(A) Any lack of expected progress toward.the annual ooals .and in the general education
curriculum, if appropriate;

(2) Consideration of special factord.
must consider the spemal factors
34C.F.R.§300.324(b)(1). 5

escnbed in paragraph (a)(2) of this section

As noted in the previous subse ““‘t’lon JPSS convened multiple IEP Committee meetings during
the 2008-09 and 2009-10 schoe -years in response to discipline infractions committed by
Petitioners and for the sole purpose?of changing a Petitioner’s placement to an alternative school
setting. A reyiew, of the IEP committee minutes from these numerous meetings reflects that -
these same Zé’(omm s never once addressed a single Petitioner’s glaring lack of academic
progress, consequent tack of progress in the general curriculum and lack of expected progress
toward his/h annualggoals As a consequence, none of the Petitioners often inappropriate
annual goals weteszevised and no additional academic supports were provided. Instead of
addressing these significant academic progress issues during the course of the school-year when
there was still time to redress and reverse such circumstances and in conjunction with IEP
Committee meetings scheduled to address discipline issues® JPSS repeatedly chose to ignore
Petitioners lack of academic progress in clear violation of IDEA’s mandates and these omissions
engendered a denial of FAPE. 34 C.F.R. §300.324(b) (1).

35 It’s also quite evident based upon Petitioners ongoing grades and misalignment of their annual IEP academic
goals with their present levels of academic performance that they were experiencing academic frustrations that likely
contributed to their behavioral infractions. Due to this inter-relationship it was imperative that JPSS address both
academic issues (lack of progress) and behavioral issues.
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E. JPSS Has Failed to Provide Educational Services in the Least Restrictive Environment

As highlighted in the Introduction Section of this systemic IDEA complaint, there is a distinct
interrelationship between several of the substantive requirements underlying the provision of
FAPE. When systemic violations occur with multiple substantive requirements of FAPE these
violations often trigger a systemic violation of IDEA’s LRE mandate. In the present instance,
JPSS’ multiple systemic violations detailed at length in Section IA, IB, IC, and ID have
cumulatively engendered systemic violations of IDEA’s LRE mandate for Petitioners A.M.,
P.A., C.O., A.L. and the previously defined class of similarly situated stud%ents.

The following JPSS’ systemic violations of FAPE have produced the% Wiy
violation of IDEA’s LRE mandate for Petitioners and the prevzously defined céass, %% '

1 . JPSS’ uniform failure the past several years to proyi ufﬁ01ent and‘*appropnate levels
of related services has resulted in Petitioners’ d"etal »lack of behavioral progress
which in turn has engendered numerous behavioral incidents.that adversely affect their
tenure in regular classroom and is often cited as a reason on JPSS’ LRE Documentation
Form for removing them from regulaz;% education.’® The failure has also led to
numerous discipline incidents that have nesulted in OSS or ISS and consequently a
-significant loss of instruction time“fo i:{Pem‘tl@ners Such significant loss of instruction
time over several years has caused e%moners to fall farther and farther behind
academically and this factor has also con‘tmbuted significantly to their placement in
more restrictive educatwnal environments, Additionally, many of these discipline
incidents (not mvolvmg,’ weapons, drugs, serious bodily injury) have led to Petitioners
being placed at JPSS’ alterna ive school (CCAS) where Petitioners have made little if
any academic progress as refle ng by their CCAS grades and also little or no ongoing
behavior progx’éss as manifested "by their repeated placements annually at CCAS. The
distinct lack of academic and behavioral progress at CCAS leaves Petitioners farther
behind ada g when they return to regular school settings and with the same
ongoing behav1ora1 issues. Both of these factors make more restrictive placement
essentially 1nev11zab1e

2. JPSS’ uniform failure the past several years to conduct appropriate Functional Behavior

A ssessments (FBAs) and its concomitant failure to develop and implement appropriate

Behavior Intervention Plans (BIPS) lead to and reinforce the same LRE negating results

discussed in Paragraph I above.”’

S2 uniform failure the past several years to align Petitioners’ IEP short term

Ehves and annual goals with Petitioners’ actual present levels of academic

performance (PLOP) has consistently resulted in Petitioners being taught at academic

levels far exceeding their academic skills has created n obvious dearth of academic

progress, obvious and ongoing school frustration i issues®® and consequent exacerbation

36 See Section IA herein. For example, see the LRE Documentation Forms for A.M.
37 See discussion in Section IB herein.
38 See discussion in Section ID herein.
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of behavioral issues (particularly escape behaviors related to skill deficits). Such
multiple adverse results have also contributed to the inevitable placement of Petitioners
in restrictive educational settings.
4. JPSS’ uniform failure the past several years to consider and implement positive
behavioral interventions and supports for Petitioners who all have behavior marked as a
“special factor” on their IEP perpetuated the same LRE negatlng outcomes discussed in
Paragraphs a, b above.>
5. JPSS’ uniform failure the past several years to meet and revise Petitioners during the
course of the school-year to address their significant and ongoingfia, of academic
and/or behavioral progress including their lack of progress in the genera %cun'idiilum
and lack of expected progress toward their annual goals guaranteed fa1lnz%g§§rades
retentions and continuing behavioral and discipline incidents. %0 These inexorable
‘results in turn contributed to the placement of Petitioners, in restrictive educational
settings.
6. JPSS’ uniform failure the past several years to provide Petitioners, with an education
that conferred meaningful educational benefit as‘requlred by IDEA has engendered the
following sad and pervasive reality; the Pet1t1omers are typically performing years
behind their chronological grade level amd%g@ of%a{tchelr peers.*  This fact and the
ongoing behavior issues that accompany yeas tilexor no academic progress have
ironically and continually been used by JPSS ‘te place Petitioners in more restrictive
educational settings.

JPSS’ numerous systemic wola’uonsli,tf FAP bove have been used illegally by the district to

JPSS has also engaged. in a:\ onal practices that have denied Petitioners and the previously
defined class of s1m11arly\s1tuated students their right to receive educational services in the Least
Restnctlve Environment. JPSS has repeatedly failed to document that it has pursued any of the
followmg‘*strategws that would have allowed Petitioners to continue accessing general educatlon
classes;

The use of paraprofess1onal aides (1 e. behav1oral aides) and/or the use of Special

b. The’ practlce of increasing related services in response to a student’s increasing
behavior and/or discipline incidents;

3 See discussion in Section ID herein.

0 See discussion in Section ID herein.

“ See discussion in Section IC

“2 Petitioners A.M, T.A., C.O., and A.L. were all placed in highly restrictive educational placements during the
2009-10 school-year and are all slated to return to restrictive placements for the 2010-11 school-year .



c. Implementation of individual and classroom based positive behavioral intervention
and support plans;

d. Modifications of the regular education curriculum;

e. The use of peer supports/coaches and/or peer tutoring; and

f. The use of additional supplemental aides and services including providing behavioral
intervention training to regular education teachers.

Instead of providing and implementing any of the above supplemental aids, services, supports
prior to removing Petitioners from regular education, JPSS has continuously chosen instead to
segregate them in highly restrictive self-contained settings. JPSS’ placement decisions with
respect to the Petitioners and all those similarly situated violate IDEA *§imandate that, to the
maximum extent possible, students with disabilities be educated 1 %th “least _restrictive
environment. See 20 U.S.C. § 1412(a) (5); 34 C.F.R. §300.114-117. “'Ef ere 1S simply no
evidence in any of the Petitioners’ records that JPSS ever attefﬁ%ted to incre ase the amount of
counseling, social work, or psychologlcal services or implemy nt any of the above described
supplemental aids and services in order to enable Petitioners *fo, access and/or remain (and
succeed) in less restrictive general education settings. This pervasive reality reflects JPSS’
systemic failure to provide the appropriate supplemental aids and serv%es, accommodations, and
modifications necessary to enable the Petitioners and similarly situated students to participate in
general education. Such failures constitute clear violations of IDEA’s LRE mandate. 20 U.S.C.
§1412 (a) (5); 34 C.F.R. §300.114-117. This illegal pattern and practice has continued up until
the present and is in clear violation of ID, RE mandate.*

F. JPSS Has Failed to Prov1de Ap l;gprlate Transition Plans for its Students with
Disabilities. - -

FAPE by its failure to provide y ) roprlate transmon plans State Policies Regarding Children
with Disabilities under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act Amendments of 2004,
State Board Poqugy 7219, Effective July 20, 2009 states in §300.320(b) “Beginning not later than
- in effect when the child turns fourteen (14), or younger if determined
ommittee, and updated annually, thereafter, the IEP must include—(1)

* JPSS’ decision to place Petitioner A.M. in a self-contained setting immediately upon classifying him as ED is
clear evidence that no attempt was made to provide the types of supplementary aides and services and/or curriculum
modifications described above in regular education settings so that he could remain in most of his core academic
classes. Instead of implementing any of these supplemental aids/services/supports prior to or any time after
removing Petitioner A.M. from regular education, JPSS continuously chose to segregate A.M. in a highly restrictive
segregated setting. This illegal pattern and practice has continued up until the present as Petitioner A.M.’s recent
IEP indicates he will receive direct instruction in a segregated special education classroom. Petitioners T.A. and
C.O. also received their instructional services in segregated special education classes throughout 2009-10 and are
scheduled to return to the same self-contained settings for 2010-11. Petitioner A.L. was also placed in highly
restrictive settings during 2009-10 due to her repeated placement in JPSS’ alternative school.
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related to training, education, employment, and, where appropriate, independent living skills; and
(2) The transition services (including courses of study) needed to assist the child in reaching
those goals.” See also the IDEA Regulations, 34 C.F.R. §300.320(b)

State Policies Regarding Children with Disabilities under the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act Amendments of 2004, State Board Policy 7219, Effective July 20, 2009 states in

§300.43 (a) “Transition services means a coordinated set of activities for a child with a disability
that—(1) Is designed to be within a results-oriented process, that is focused on improving the
academic and functional achievement of the child with a disability to facilitate the child’s
movement from school to post-school activities, including postsecondary education, vocajt}ional
education, integrated employment (including supported employment), "%G@ntmumg and “adult
education, adult services, independent living, or community partlc1pat10n”%§%§* §I %lgased on the
individual child’s needs, taking into account the child’s strengths, preferences/an mterests; and
includes—(i) Instruction; (ii) Related services; (iii) Comfmunity expemences (iv) The
development of employment and other post-school adult 11V<;§ng Ject1ves and4(v) If appropriate,
acquisition of daily living skills and provision of a functional VoG ational evaluation.” See also

the IDEA Regulations, 34 C.F.R. 300.43

JPSS has failed to provide appropriate &ms1t10m@1ans for AM.,, TA,, P.A.,, AL, and C.O.
based on their IEPs for the 2009-2010 schoglﬁ%reaﬁ P.A’s entn‘e trans1t10n plan mvolves one
sentence (7 words) stating “P.A. would Iik ;lggécome a rapper.” However, there is no
documentation suggesting the necessary steps t ,,apprd%riately provide P.A. with his career
choice, such as being enrolled in a music class orgefeative’ writing class. Additionally, the
transition services statement merg,lg states instructior’ will be provided yet there are no transition
instruction goals on the IEP. Moreover, the plan remarkably states that no other transition
services such as related services, trs; ing, community services, and employment skills are
needed for P.A. to pursue and achlevvé% 's¢goa1 ** The reality is that throughout the past year
P.A. needed related services to address his behavioral challenges, training (e.g. music or creative
writing class), commum’gf%servwes/placement (e.g. radio station, community music programs
that involve rap USics suetc, d employment skills in order to pursue his above post-school
outcome. JPSS’ faﬂure\to pr de these critical transition services denied P.A. FAPE during the
2009-10 school- year

# OSEP has stated that if an IEP team determines an individual student does not need transition services in one or
more of these areas the IEP must contain a statement to that effect and the basis upon which the determination is
made (OSEP Letter to Cernosia 19 IDELR 933). There are no such statements or bases provided on P.A.’s IEP for
the absence of related services, training, community experience, adult living/employment skills.

> Although P.A.’s transition plan was expanded recently at his annual TEP update/review to include more detailed
post-school outcomes, the plan once again only involves instruction and excludes the same critically necessary
transition services involving related services, training, community experience and adult living /employment skills.
46 A L.’s transition plan for 2010-11 also entails the same glaring transition services deficiencies as her 2009-10

plan.
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JPSS failed to provide T.A., and C.O. with transition plans on their IEPs for the 2009-10 school-
year despite the legal mandate cited above. A.M., and C.O. were 14 years of age when their
annual [EP reviews/updates were held in the spring of 2009. Moreover, IEP committee meetings
were held for each of them after August 1, 2009 and in every instance, the IEP committee failed
to address the transition plan mandate.*’ Petitioner T.A. turned 14 years of age on June 30, 2009.
Similar to the other Petitioners named herein, his IEP committee met a number of times after
August 1, 2009 and failed each time to develop the legally mandated tramnsition plan.
Con51dermg the fact that the Petitioners are all performing several years behind their
chronological grade levels and peers, they desperately needed transition plan _and services
during the 2009-10 school-year. JPSS’ failure to provide transition plans ant ),servmes to
Petitioners and other similarly situated students is a clear violation of the law as cited ab ye.
. &
G. JPSS Has Failed to Appropriately Identify and Provide Illdfééﬂ alized Extended School
Year Services to Eligible Students.

On information and belief, JPSS illegally denied Petltloners AM., EH., AL., and P.A., and all
other similarly situated students in the class Extended School year (herelnafter “ESY™) services
during the summer of 2009. Such services were,e%% \%\ Petmoners in order to prevent
significant regression regarding academic and/or behav or%l ! Ils and/or to maintain a critical

point of instruction; or due to extenuating circumstances. §K

o

ESY ehglblhty determinations under Mississippi’s State Policies and accompanying ESY
Handbook® are to be primarily dat base “de ecisions involving an examination of detailed
student performance data before ‘andpafter tWo instructional breaks of at least five days
(Regression-Recoupment Standard) a teviewof critical academic and/or behavioral IEP
obJ ectives and accompanyingfinstructional ani 't behavioral data that reflects whether a student

I ng ‘regardmg éne of the objectives (Critical Point of Instruction

is at a critical point of ledrni
Standard).

The pattern and practice in JPSS 1s%t"ﬁat ESY eligibility decisions are not based upon a review of
the above pertment types of data but rather are purely subjective decisions made by JPSS staff.
JPSS has 31mply neyer implemented a system whereby pertinent ESY academic and behavioral
data is routinely coll kﬁated by teachers nor to Petitioners knowledge has it required such data
collection.’

e consequence is that Petitioners and the class of similarly situated students’
“—

1 For example, C.0.’s records reflect that his IEP committee met on more than five different occasions after August
1, 2009 and failed each time to develop a transition plan for him.

8 See State Policies Regarding Children with Disabilities under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
Amendments of 2004, State Board Policy 7219, Effective July 20, 2009 §300.106. Mississippi uses three separate
ESY eligibility criteria - Regression-Recoupment; Critical Point of Instruction 1and 2; Extenuating Circumstances.
See ESY Handbook Pages 10-12.

9 See State Board of Education Policy 7212 (available on the MDE website at

http://www.mde.k12.ms.us/special _education/pdfs/ESY Handbook 2003.pdf).

%0 Parents/guardians are often unaware of the option of ESY services and thus do not actively participate in the
decision making process. The reasons are that the elements of the four ESY criteria are rarely if ever discussed with
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access to ESY services is left to the caprices of JPSS staff rather than based on objective data and
thus true need.”® The arbitrary and subjective nature of ESY eligibility determinations in JPSS
has resulted in a denial of FAPE for Petitioners A.M., EH., A.L., P.A., and all other similarly
situated students in the class for the summer of 2009°* and continue to produce ongoing denials
of needed ESY services for the summer of 2010 the following Petitioners.”® See State Policies
Regarding Children with Disabilities under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
Amendments of 2004, State Board Policy 7219, Effective July 20, 2009 states in §300.106; 34
C.F.R.§300.106.

Petitioners also contend that in violation of the IDEA and its implementing regulations, JPSS has
illegally and unilaterally limited the duration of the ESY services it pro%“ ides over the summer
months in both 2009 and 2010 to a pre-determined, fixed-length progra
number of hours per day, days per week and the same number of weeks.
program for elementary students was a fixed-length, umfom‘iﬁprogram that ran from 7:45-
1:00pm, Monday-Friday and from June 4th until June 30 days). In 2010 JPSS’ ESY
program for middle school students is also a fixed-length, uinform;zp ogram for all middle school
students that runs from 8:00-11:00am, Monday-Friday and from@June 9th until July 27th.
Finally, JPSS’ ESY program for high school students in 2010 is also a fixed-length, uniform
program for all high school students that runs from 7:45-1:00pm, Monday-Friday and from June
oth until July 27th.>* In each instance elenﬁgéntar%y, middle, and high school students with
disabilities are limited to a fixed number o Qurs@er days and number of weeks. This is the
‘maximum period of time Petitioners or any othe e11g1b‘*le student may receive ESY services
during the summer, regardless of whether Petitionersiof other similarly situated students require
services over a longer period of time in order to avoid regression, address a critical point of
instruction or address extenuatings:circumstances.  This is a per se violation of the IDEA
regulations, as well as Mississippi’s State Policies implementing IDEA.  See 34
C.F.R.§300.106(a)(3)(i1) & Mississippf%%%e Policies Regarding Children with Disabilities under

parents/guardlans critical eligibility data is not shared or reviewed with parents/guardians; and often, ESY is not
JEP meetings.

even dlscussedﬁt
3! A number e Petltlon‘ s also have legitimate regression-recoupment issues regarding their behavior as
evidenced by th muluple ehavior and discipline incidents they have for 4-6 week s at the start of each new school-
year. See SectionilA and [B?for discussions of behavior and discipline incidents involving A.M., T.A.., C.O. and
A.L. that occurred atithesstart of several school-years. JPSS thus needs to be collecting written behavzor
performance data for Petitioners and the previously defined class of similarly situated students in order to routinely
and objectively apply the Regression-Recoupment standard in determining their eligibility for ESY services.

%2 See a34 C.F.R. 300.106

53 The following Petitioners also did not qualify for ESY services in 2010; A.M., A.L., and P.A. Those Petitioners
that did qualify for ESY services this summer (T.A., E.H., and C.0.) qualified not based upon a review of pertinent
ESY data but because of the direct intervention of advocates who argued that ESY services could not be denied
when JPSS failed to collect the necessary ESY eligibility data.

A review of JPSS’ website reflects that JPSS has limited ESY services to conform to the district’s summer school
schedule for students generally. Although Petitioners believe that the length, duration and scope of the JPSS* ESY
program will meet the needs of many students with disabilities it still cannot serve as an arbitrary ceiling or limit on
the provision of individualized ESY services. There are likely to be some students with disabilities (e.g. a student
with autism) who may need 10-12 weeks of ESY services.
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the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act Amendments of 2004, State Board Policy 7219,
Effective July 20, 2009 states in § 300.106 (a)(3). >

Finally, in May 2009, JPSS engaged in highly illegal conduct by conditioning A.L.’s receipt of
ESY services in the following manner: JPSS would provide ESY services with the condition that
if she missed five or more days of school during the summer ESY program she would be placed
at Capital City Alternative School for 45 days at the commencement of the full 2009-10 school
term. This condition is not part of JPSS’ student code of conduct, nor is it as written district
policy regarding the receipt of ESY services.’® Instead it is a punitive ¢6 Sndition that was
established for A.L.>’ Although students with disabilities are subject to a district’ s@fstudenéf’code
of conduct, they cannot have their right to FAPE which included ESY services fo‘i@gWA L.
conditioned on a non-district wide, individual punitive condition that is clearly 1n§énded to
illegally limit and/or deprive a student’s entitlement to FAPE. 4

M1ss1331pp1 Department of Education will need to ensure ‘fhe followmg action is taken to redress
JPPS’ numerous systemic IDEA violations delineateds thlS iass complaint:

4-¢’a,

1. Compel JPSS to hire a recognized A@ﬁe”;(fertﬁ* in “Pos1t1ve Behavioral Interventions and
Supports (PBIS) to work with their Curtent PBIS, comrdlnator to develop and implement
district-wide PBIS over the next three yearssstarting with the training and implementation
of Tier I and Tier III in all JPSS schools b é’{end of the 2010-11 school-year.® The
PBIS Expert shall be mutually selected by JPSS and Petitioners.%

2. Compel JPSS to develop and:implement with the above-referenced recognized PBIS
Expert a systemic district-wide llS training program/protocol that shall include, but not
be limited to, strategws obj ectlves and timelines for students with disabilities related to

%’a‘uon and content of ESY services, and failing to individualize its ESY
services to address the umque\needs of each eligible student, JPSS is violating the clear mandate of the IDEA and its
accompanying regulations, and i 1§:failing to provide FAPE. See 34 C.F.R. §300.106 (a)(1).

St is notsa district-wide policy T te: students with disabilities receipt of ESY services simply because it would be
patentls 1Ilega1

7 Al hough JPSS did not hesitate to impose this arbitrary and illegal condition, it did so while once again refusing
to pro%;,de A.L. with critically needed related services during her ESY program and without revising her BIP to
include; ASlthC behavmral interventions and supports.

58 AppropnatexPBIS implementation must initially focus on both Tier I (universal - for all students) and Tier II
(tertiary- FBAs and BIPs for students with disabilities) because many students with disabilities are presently entitled
to FBAs and BIPs. Their rights simply cannot wait for Tier I and then Tier II to be implemented before Tier IIL
Students with disabilities ongoing right to Tier III FBAs and BIPs requires Tier I1I to be implemented
simultaneously with Tier 1.

% Although JPSS has a multi-year grant to implement a number of safe school initiatives including PBIS, JPSS has
chosen to limit PBIS implementation to only its middle schools. No district-wide PBIS implementation is planned.
Moreover, the serial suspensions and multiple placements of Petitioners and the previously defined class of
similarly situated students in JPSS’ alternative school (CCAS) clearly manifest that PBIS is not being implemented
with integrity or fidelity in JPSS’ middle schools.
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(a2

the development of functional behavioral assessments (FBAs), the development and
implementations of behavior intervention plans, and conducting manifestation
determination reviews (MDRs). The PBIS training and implementation protocol shall
include all principals, assistant principals, teachers (general and special education), pupil
appraisal staff, paraprofessionals, disciplinarians, other school administrators, and other
educational service providers working at all schools in the district and shall also include
bus drivers and cafeteria workers and a small select group of parents/guardians with
children in the school. The training protocol shall also include the active use of pupil
appraisal staff for ongoing follow-up with staff.

Compel JPSS, in agreement with the nationally recognized PBIS Expert specified in
Paragraph #1, to develop and implement a reliable and PBIS congruent central
administrative electronic tracking system for recording# number of disciplinary
referrals and removals from school (In-school Suspensions, Otit-of-school Suspensions,

xé

Compel JPSS to hire the above PBIS Expert to conduct a rev1ew/aud1t of its Spe01a1

are subject to repeated disciplinary removals an%or placement in alternative school
settings in JPSS including its alternative school (Capital City Alternative School) and to
issue a report with specific recpmmendanons for systemically addressing these students

behavioral programming ne%de for inating JPSS’ discriminatory placement rates of
students with disabilities in altemnative school settings; for significantly decreasing if not
eliminating JPSS’ placement of nena—dwé%led students in alternative school settings for
non-weapon/drug/sen@%c‘se bodily injusy " discipline infractions. . The Expert shall be
required to developf‘%%?a lan (heremafter “Plan”) to address all of the systemic violations
detailed in this comp it and all of the systemic and individual remedies described
herein.

Compel;; SS to collaborate and reach agreement with the PBIS Expert on the revision of
the dis ‘¢ode of conduct prior to the end 0of 2010 and subject to the School Board’s
review and approval process. The district’s code of conduct shall be revised to make it
con, t with ‘;TPSS’ implementation of district and school-wide PBIS.

Compel JPSS to develop specific school system policies that are disseminated by the
Superintendent to all school building administrators including principals, vice-principals,
and disciplinarians outlining and mandating strict compliance with IDEA’s discipline
requirements including the requirements of Manifestation Determination Reviews;
providing IEP services upon reaching the 11th cumulative day of Out-of-School
suspensions, In-School suspensions or a combination thereof; development of appropriate
FBAs; development of BIPs involving positive behavioral interventions and supports,
strategies, and services; review and modification of BIPs after every 10 days of
suspensions; develop specific strategies with the undersigned interested parties for
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reducing the number of suspensions, expulsions, referrals to youth court, and more
restrictive placements.

7. Compel JPSS to develop and implement in agreement with the nationally recognized
PBIS Expert specified in Paragraph #1 above specific annual strategies and objectives for
significantly reducing the number of suspensions (OSS and ISS) of students with
disabilities;

8. Compel JPSS to develop and implement in agreement with the nationally recognized
PBIS Expert specified in Paragraph #1 above specific annual strategles and objectives for
significantly reducing the number of students with disabilities Spending time in self-
contained classroom settings and concomitantly significantly mcr%asm gggtudents with
disabilities access to the general education cumculum/classrooms @ver tﬁe next three
years. Compel JPSS to train all staff and regular &d%éatlon teachers regarding the
importance of aligning students IEP goals and obj ectWezs with their actual present levels

of academic performance.

9. Compel JPSS to place certified special education teachers in itééééélf-contained classrooms
and its alternatives schools to allow preperly developed IEPs to confer meaningful
education benefit; -

10. Compel JPSS to develop and implemen agrgement with the nationally recognized
PBIS Expert specified in Paragraph #1 aboveigpécific annual strategies and objectives for
significantly increasing the frequency and duration of social work, counseling, and
psychological related serv/jfﬁé?es provided to students with disabilities and all other students
-who are subject to repeated dlS iplinary removals and/or placement in alternative school
settings in JPSS and to also ensuge-decisions involving such related services are based
upon 1nd1v1dualmeed and not staffavailability;

%

~ 11. Compel JP§S€1® p and implement in agreement with the nationally recognized

PBIS Expert speg ~c1ﬁe IParagraph #1 above specific annual strategies and objectives for

implementing 1nten31ve reading/math remediation programs at all elementary schools

servmg class members to ensure that they are reading at or within one year of their
$¢;ff90hre»nolog1cal grade level by the time they move to middle school; and specific annual
~ strategies and objectives for implementing intensive reading/math remediation programs
for all class members who are determined to be two or more years behind their
égical grade level in middle school or high school based on either standardized
~ores and/or curriculum based assessments.

12. Compel JPSS to develop and implement in agreement with the nationally recognized
PBIS Expert specified in Paragraph #1 specific strategies, objectives and training
initiatives for ensuring that transition plans are individualized; based on concrete
outcomes; inclusive of several of the legally prescribed transition services (related

39



services, training, community support services etc.) for students age fourteen (14) in
conformance with Mississippi state guidelines;

13. Compel JPSS to develop and implement in agreement with the nationally recognized
PBIS Expert specified in Paragraph #1 above specific annual strategies, objectives and
protocols for ensuring that children with disabilities who are transitioning from
alternative school, youth court or other out-of-school placements are given adequate
supports and services to transition back to their home school successﬁiigﬁ

14. Compel JPSS to develop and implement in agreement with an expert in" BSY serv1ces
specific annual strategies, objectives and protocols for implementing the MlSSISSLPfﬁ ESY
eligibility criteria including - routinizing the collection of regressmn—recoupment data,
critical point of instruction data and extenuating circémistances data by teachers;
providing individualized ESY services to all eligible students ith disabilities; ensuring

but not limited to classroom observation han’{égnvrta otis. to pre-evaluation (TST/RTI)
meetings and to also create a mechanism for communicating with the parents/ guardians
of students with disabilities on a regular bas1s%“«bout important IDEA issues (e.g.

transition services, ESY servie
‘communications. g

_etc) via a periodic newsletter, electronic

o

16. Compel JPSS to create an adv1sory,, ane ‘With the undersigned parties to advise the JPSS

Ends quarterly reports of the progress regarding the district’s
1 CAP activities to the advisory panel referenced in this

él’ {
system. Ensure%ﬁ%t JR
compliance with any

17. Compel JPSS to contract with entities such as non-profits or universities to hold focus

groups with JPSS éparents/guardmns and students on a quarterly basis. These focus
groups will be aimed at gathering information that will help inform the work of the
natronally recognized expert. The Focus Groups will provide students with a safe space
uring Wthh they can report on school climate and disciplinary procedures.
“Parent/ guardlans will also benefit from these focus groups and report on their interactions
with“school officials. Findings and recommendations issued by the focus group will be
incorporated into the experts monitoring reports.

Individual Remedies Necessary to Settle This Class Complaint
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JPSS must take the following action to address each Petitioner’s individual claims in order to
settle this administrative complaint:

1.

Provide compensatory education for excessive suspensions and denial of FAPE. JPSS
must provide each Petitioner with compensatory services for the next three years per a
weekly schedule that’s agreeable to Petitioners parents/guardians so that each Petitioner
has an opportunity to earn credit for classes failed and education fundamentals that have
been missed. (Extended School-year Services will not satisfy this demand);

Immediately increase the level of related services (social work/psychological counseling)
offered to each Petitioner to at least one hour per week; 5

Conduct a new functional behavioral assessment and develop new “behavioral
intervention plan for each Petitioner using a licensed sch‘%ol psychologl“t who is capable
of redressing the concerns detailed in Dr. Brad Dufrefie’s expert report

G ’“' expert report*which is attached
as Exhibit B. < %%»&

Develop a plan with concrete strategies, including the aSSIgnment of a child-specific aide
if necessary, and specific timelines and goals for placing each Petitioner in at least some
core academic regular education classes at the start of the 2010-11 school-year;

Provide for each Petitioner who IS%‘E vo.years or more behind his chronological grade level
in reading or math intensive (mpen tory educational services based upon a menu of
intervention strategies that mé\lAe after school one-to-one tutoring three times per week
for one hour each sesswn by a certf%ﬁed teﬁacher until each Petitioner is working on grade

level. Transportanonﬁés’fiﬁ"ll be prov1de@as a related service for all tutoring services;

Immediately develop *‘c%?r\nplement a meaningful, results-oriented transition plan for

each Petitioner that mcluﬁes an array of transition services including but not limited to
vocational training through%%?le district or private entities;

II. Systemic Admuustratlve Complamt on Behalf of R.B.. Rd.B., Ra. B. and a Class of All

Similarly Situated Students in Special Education who transfer into JPSS from an a out-of-
state or in-state local school district:

A. JPSS Has Systemically Failed to Provide Students who transfer into JPSS with

IEPs Currently in Effect from Out-of-state School Districts or In-state School
Districts with IDEA Services Comparable to Those Entailed in the TEP from the
Transferring Out-of-state or In-state School District
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Petitioner R.B. is a fifteen (15) year old student currently in the 9th grade at Wingfield High
School who finished the 2009-10 school-year at Capital City Alternative School (CCAS). R.B.
entered JPSS at the beginning of the 2008-09 school-year as a 7th grade student at Brinkley
Middle School. Immediately prior to attending Brinkley Middle School, R.B. attended school in
the Cobb County School District of Marietta, Georgia from 2006 to 2008. Prior to moving to
Georgia, R.B. was enrolled in JPSS, where manifestations of her disability were apparent at a
young age, as evidenced by an evaluation conducted in 2004 that resulted in her being identified

as a student with Specific Learning Disabilities (SLD). v

At the beginning of the 2009-10 school-year, R.B. transferred to Peeples MiddleSghool and in
November 2009, she was placed at CCAS.

As a student in Cobb County School District, R.B. was evaluated for specﬁkeducaﬁon services
and identified as a student with a Learning Disability in F e”ruary 2006*‘ R.B.’s need for
specialized instruction was evidenced by her marginal gradesdand underperformance on state-
wide assessments, which led her to be retained in the 6th grade at’ ie end of the 2006-07 school-
year. There is also evidence that R.B. was diagnosed with Schizoph onia as was stated in a letter
from Cobb County Outpatient Services. While attending school in Manetta a total of four IEPs

were implemented to address R.B.’s learning needs,

R.B.’s mother reported this information fo“J: SS‘**when R.B. re-enrolled in August 2008.
However, for the past two years, no action was;taken Wby JPSS to obtain R.B.’s out-of-state
records and to provide special education services a‘new evaluation could be conducted. For
the past two school-years, JPSS has failed to provide R.B. with an IEP comparable to those she

was receiving in Georgia and has aﬂed to conduct its own evaluation and develop a new IEP.
“f?

Without the resources and accommoda -typically available to students with special learning
needs, R.B.’s academmz%and emotional development endured numerous setbacks. During the
2008-09 school- -year, RB received low-minimal to minimal scores on the Mississippi
Curriculum Test /andé L mostly “C” grades at Brinkley. R.B.’s academic struggles
continued into the 200 9-10 school-year when she entered Peeples Middle School. There, she
either failed or received * “D” ' grades in all core curriculum subjects. R.B. has expressed a fear of
attendmg school due to belng behind two grade levels both to her mother and to Petitioner’s
counsel*""*and consequently, was absent forty-eight times during the 2009-10 school-year. R.B.

was fsuspended four times during the 2009-10 school-year, one of which led to her expulsion
from Reeples and transfer to CCAS after she was accused of possessing a weapon.

At CCAS, B. was suspended for five days at the end of the school-year. This suspension was
sustained by JPSS even after her Education Advocate informed district officials that R.B. was
being evaluated for special education services and urged JPSS to conduct a Manifestation
Determination Review so that her removal from CCAS could be reconsidered.
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In March 2010, JPSS finally initiated a formal evaluation of R.B. nearly two years after her
mother informed the district that R.B. had been receiving IDEA services while they resided in
Cobb County.

Petitioner Rd.B. is a fourteen (14) year old student currently in the 8th grade at Whitten Middle
School after finishing the 2009-10 school-year at CCAS. Rd.B. entered JPSS at the beginning of
the 2008-09 school-year as a 6th grade student at Brinkley Middle School. At the beginning of
the 2009-10 school-year, Rd.B. transferred to Peeples Middle School and %s subsequently
placed at CCAS. Immediately prior to attending Brinkley Middle School, RdB¥attended school
in the Cobb County School District of Marietta, Georgia from 2006 to 2008. Pnof%@ that, Rd B.

was a student in JPSS. Rd.B. was initially evaluated by JPSS in November 2004 aﬁ‘d%cl sified
as SLD in February 2005. As a student in JPSS, Rd.B. had an IEP for the 2004-05 school-year,

which stipulated that he receive special education services to address, his needs in Reading and
Language Arts. This IEP also noted that Rd.B. had been d1agnos*ed with Attention Deficit
Hyperactivity Disorder and Bipolar Disorder, and that he engaged in bullying behaviors towards
peers. ¢ g

As with R.B., Rd.B. was also determined eligible for:special education services in Cobb County.
After being suspended 4 times in 2006, Rd.B. was e%fuate ‘an%ﬁater identified as a student with
Other Health Impairment (OHI) in March 2007. IEPs § W@%e implemented in 2007 and 2008 to
address behaviors exhibited by Rd.B. that impeded his learmng When Rd.B. re-enrolled in
JPSS in August 2008, his mother informed:] 3rinkley school officials of his classification and
need for special education services. ;;;JPSS tod‘"k no action to obtain Rd.B.’s records and IEPs,
~ until December 2008, well after R« had been disciplined numerous times for displaying
inappropriate behaviors, mcludmg Verb%iy thr%atemng a teacher, an incident which drew a
principal’s recommendation St & 45- day su?%eﬁgsmn

Although it remains unclear whigther JPSS ever received Rd.B.’s educational records from Cobb
County, the district certainly ha 10 4pr0v1ded Rd.B. with any special education services at any
time since his re-enrollment in 20@8 As a result, Rd.B. made little progress academically. In
fact, while he, ived mostly scores in the mid 70s at Brinkley, Rd.B.’s grades at Peeples
showed even less educational growth as most of his grades dropped into the mid 60s. Even more
troubling is i ﬁat one o the lowest scores Rd.B. received while at Peeples was a 65. 5 in Language
Arts, a subje ngmally identified by JPSS in 2004 as one in which Rd.B. required additional
supports. As a results0f being denied special education services for two school-years, Rd.B. has
also developed significant behavior issues. He was suspended thirteen times while at Peeples,
and received a three-day suspension shortly after being placed at CCAS. Additionally, Rd.B. has
continually missed school as a result of absences. In the 2009-10 school-year, he was absent
sixty times.

JPSS conducted a formal evaluation of Rd.B. in May 2010, nearly two years after he re-entered
the district, and concluded that he met the eligibility requirements for Emotional Disability. A
formal IEP meeting was finally held in June to determine the services R.B. would receive to
address his academic and emotional needs.
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Petitioner Ra.B. is a seventeen (17) year old student currently in the 9th grade for the third
straight year at Wingfield High School after finishing the 2009-10 school-year at CCAS. Ra.B.
entered Wingfield High School at the beginning of the 2008-09 school-year and was placed at
CCAS in April 2010. Before attending Wingfield High School, Ra.B. was a student in the Cobb
County District of Marietta, Georgia from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, Ra.B., like her sister,
R.B., and brother, Rd.B., was a student in JPSS. In Cobb County, Ra.B. was evaluated in 2007
and classified as a student with EBD. Ra.B.’s IEP from Cobb County included an FBA and BIP
to address her significant social and emotional problems, which included a diagnosis for
Schizophrenia. The social/behavioral section of Ra.B.’s IEP indicated that she had difficulty
with impulse control and frustration tolerance, and that she required a largeéamount of 1nd1v1dua1
attentron from her teachers Because of her umque emot1ona1 needs, Ra%‘é:B S

work as a related service throughout the school-year. The IEEP%team also c{ghcluded that the
severity of Ra.B.’s disability warranted a therapeutic, structm: d approach to learning. As a
result, the team determined that her needs would be best-served at Haven Academy, a day

treatment facility in Cobb County. Ra.B. received IDEA services at %’yen for over a year.

When she re-enrolled in JPSS in August 2008, Ra.B.’s mother communicated to school officials
at W1ngﬁe1d that her daughter received speclaﬁgﬂ educatlon serv1ces while m Cobb County As

IEPs, from the Georgia school drstnct Consequ" tly, %;aB failed all of her courses after her
first semester of the 9th grade at Wingfield. She is ¢ ,m:ently three levels behind her peers and is
not showing any signs of progress for promotion to the next grade level. Ra.B.’s emotional
stability has also deteriorated. S‘he@gaas suspended five times during 2009-10 school-year, one of
which resulted in her referral to CC%S in March 2010. As of April 2010, Ra.B. missed thirty-
two days of school due to her emotional.issues and JPSS’ failure to accommodate her special
needs for the past two school-years.

In May 2010, JPSS finally initiated a formal evaluation of Ra.B., nearly two years after her
mother mformed district that Ra.B. had been receiving IDEA services while they resided in
Cobb County )

Systemic Cfa

S
The purpose of IDEA is “to ensure that all children with disabilities have available to them a free
appropriate public education [FAPE] that emphasizes special education and related services
designed to meet their unique needs...”® When a child transfers school districts across state
lines within the same academic year and “had an IEP in effect in another state [IDEA requires
that] the new [local educational agency] provide such child with a free appropriate education,
including services comparable to those described in the previously held IEP.. %1 IPSS is in

20 U.S.C. § 1400(d), 34 C.F.R. § 300.1(=)
6120 U.S.C. § 1414(d)2)(C)()(ID), 34 C.FR. § 300.323()
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violation of IDEA by failing to provide any measure of a free and appropriate public education to
Petitioner R.B. after she transferred from Cobb County School District to JPSS in August 2008.

When R.B.’s mother informed the district at the beginning of the 2008-09 school-year that R.B.
received special education services in Georgia, JPSS became obligated to obtain R.B.’s records
from Cobb County so that it could begin to provide her with services comparable to those in her
previous IEP. IDEA requires the new school in which the child enrolls to “take reasonable steps
to promptly obtain the child’s records, including IEP and supporting documents and any other
records relating to the provision of special education or related services.. £to m the prev10us
school in Wthh the ch11d was enrolled.® Furthermore in its commentary to tuf

Programs (OSEP) stated that when a child moves into a State during the summer; the new
educational agency must “have a means for determining whether [the chﬂd has a disability] and
for ensuring that an IEP is in effect at the beginning of the school- ye\gr 82 Thus, Petitioner’s
mother’s assertion that R.B. was a student in special education should have immediately alerted
JPSS to R.B.’s needs and prompted the district to take ‘zeasonable steps”.to obtain her records
from Cobb County 6 Instead, for two school years JPS‘S made no attempt to access R.B.’s
, aca‘“demlc progress, and was subject to

by suspension unless school ofﬁ01als detenmr?‘ea throu “an MDR that her conduct was not
related to her disability. However, because JPSS faﬂ%d fo obtain her records from Cobb County,
R.B. received instruction in general education classrooms. Given the academic deficiencies
identified in her previous IEP, pro’ress in such a setting became virtually impossible for R.B.
Her frustration with being asked to co plete work that was not tailored to her academic needs
manifested itself in the form of negativeidisplays of behavior. Had JPSS requested her records
from Cobb County, the/d1stnct would have determined that R.B. would benefit from a Functional
Behavior Assessment (FBA)., Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP), and appropriate related services
to address her disdbi fact, while R.B. was classified as SLD both in Cobb County and
JPSS in 2004, the lackeof special-education instruction over the past two years has caused her to

be recla531ﬁed as a stuc ent Wlth an Emot10na1 Dlsablhty This reclassification reflects the

,,,,,

p Ag;é’” wmk .
Everi;;W1thout access to R. B s educational records from Cobb County, JPSS had in its possession

r to RB.’s re-entry into the district. Had JPSS attempted to review R.B.’s

6290 U.S.C. § 1414(d)(2)(C)(ii)(I), 34 C.F.R. § 300.323(g)

63 IEPs for Children Who Transfer From Another State, 71 Fed. Reg. 46,681, 46,682 (August 14, 2006).

R B.’s Education Advocate obtained R.B.’s records, including her IEPs, within twenty four (24) hours of placing a
request with Cobb County School District for their transmittal. Also, the Texas Education Agency provides that, in
accordance with Texas Administrative Code § 89.1050(f)(3), when a student transfers from another state and the
parents/guardians verify that the student was receiving special education services in the previous school district, the
school district must complete the requirements of § 300.323(f) within thirty (30) school days from the date the
student is verified as being a student eligible for special education services.
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educational history upon her arrival in August 2008, the district would have been immediately
made aware of R.B.’s disability classification and might have used the results of the evaluation
to inform its choice of services for R.B. until another evaluation could be performed to assess her
current academic and emotional needs.

The same above arguments also support the conclusion that JPSS violated IDEA mandates.
JPSS had sufficient notice of Rd.B.’s need for special education services when his mother
informed the district of his eligibility at the beginning of the 2008-2009 school-year. Not only
was JPSS obligated to provide Rd.B. with FAPE, the district was also required, pursuant to
relevant statutory provisions, to take “reasonable steps to promptly obtain [his] records,

including IEP and supporting documents and any other records relating to the provision of
special education or related services from [Cobb County]. »65 Furthermore, in its commentary to
the federal regulations, the OSEP states that when a child moves m"%;g State during the summer,

the new educational agency must “have a means for determining ‘*ﬁ\/h ther [the child has a
disability] and for ensuring that an IEP is in effect at the beginning of the chool-year.”®® JPSS’
violation of IDEA requirements resulted in a substantial loss of instruction‘time for Rd.B. as he
has been disciplined numerous times for issues relaté& to his behavior. Although he is
considered an average student, Rd.B. has not beem;.able tosmake any meaningful academic
progress over the past two school-years. While he was éﬁﬁ%’ﬁe’ has a student with OHI in Cobb
County, JPSS evaluations conducted in May 2010 concluded that Rd.B. is eligible for an ED
classification. Rd.B.’s reclassification may have been unnecessary if JPSS took reasonable steps
to obtain his records from the former sche@lgdlstnct or, if it had simply canvassed its own files.

A quick investigation would have r’%aled ﬁlats Rd.B. had been previously classified by JPSS
and received special education services, in thev«d1strlct for more than a year. Instead, JPSS
suspended Rd.B. on at least four occasiongbefore finally inquiring with Cobb County about his
educational history. There 154”;10 evidence t at’ﬁJPSS ever followed up with the Georgia school
district and Rd.B. cont1nueﬁ§t be*&subJ ect to unJust disciplinary action throughout the 2009-2010
school-year. ﬁ%

Petitioner Ra.B.’s claims against JPSS are the same as those advanced by R.B. and Rd.B. JPSS
had notice of«,”Rg .B.’s disability. Based upon the information provided to JPSS by Ra.B.’s
mother JPS%’had reason to suspect that Ra.B. was a student eligible of IDEA services and JPSS
was under statutory ob igation to retrieve her records from Cobb County School District. Under
IDEA, when*axchild transfers school districts, “to facilitate [their] transition, the new school in
which the child®enrolls must take reasonable steps to promptly obtain the child’s records,
including IEP and supporting documents and any other records relating to the provision of
special education or related services...from the previous school in which the child was
enrolled....”%” Furthermore, since Ra.B.’s re-enroliment took place over the summer, with her
mother informlng the district at the beginning of the school-year, OSEP’s commentary on the
regulations governing out-of-state school transfers is directly applicable and required JPSS to
have “a means for determining whether [the child has a disability and] for ensuring that an IEP is

% § 1414())(C)E)D)
6 1EPs for Children Who Transfer From Another State, 71 Fed. Reg. at 46,682.
7§ 1414(d)((O)(GD)D)
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in effect at the beginning of the school-year.”® JPSS failed to take any steps to retrieve Ra.B.’s
records from Cobb County until May 2010, almost two years after she re-entered the school
district. The length of time that passed before JPSS decided to take action cannot be considered
“reasonable” by any means. JPSS’ inaction, with regards to Ra.B., represents a wholesale
violation of Ra.B.’s rights under IDEA. The district has not provided Ra.B. with any
accommodations that would address her unique social and emotional needs. Without related
services like social work to support her education, Ra.B. has regressed both academically and
emotionally. This is evidenced by her failing grades at the conclusion of both school-years, and
expulsion from Wingfield.

The stress and frustration of being in a learning environment that is not ta;l red to her academic
and social needs has led Ra.B. to conclude that she no longer belongsméc@ol RaB. is
considering dropping out of school and obtaining a General Education Dgvelopment (GED)
certificate due to JPSS’ failure to provide appropriate services or «»accommodgj;c her disability.

She will turn eighteen in December and has been retained in th ‘*@th grade for the third straight
year. As an element of FAPE Ra.B. should have participated 1n’ an. »annual Transition Plan
meeting to address goals for further education, employment and independent living after high
school. By failing to take any steps to obtain heragcords, JPSS denied Ra.B. her right to prepare
for a future education and career.

.

JPSS’ numerous systemic IDEA v1olat10n§ dehneated in this class complalnt

1. Compel JPSS toupr ,%de equitable relief in the form of extensive compensatory services
for R.B., Rd. B\%\ and "sz%B for the missed/lost instructional time that resulted from not
being prov1ded w1th services comparable to their previous and then effective out-of-state

IEPs (Cobb County%School District) in the 2008-09 and 2009-10 school-years. In view of

) the.total absence of IEP services for R. B., Rd.B., and Ra.B. for two school-years,

~ compensatory education is certamly an approprlate remedy for redressing the JPPS’

Vlolatlons of their rights under IDEA.%

68 TEPs for C%gfen Who Transfer From Another State, 71 Fed. Reg. at 46,682.

’ “Compensatory education is a legal term used to describe future educational services which courts award to a
disabled student under the IDEA for the school district’s failure to provide a FAPE in the past.” It “involves
discretionary, prospective, injunctive relief crafted by a court to remedy what might be termed an educational deficit
created by an educational agency’s failure over a given period of time to provide FAPE to a student.” In M.C. v.
Central Regional School District, the Court sets forth its standard for determining when compensatory services are
an appropriate remedy and for calculating the amount of services to be offered. M.C. v. Central Regional School
District, 81 F.3d 389, 395 (3d Cir. 1996).
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2. Compel JPSS to provide equitable relief in the form of compensatory services to any
IDEA eligible student who transferred into JPSS in the past school-year (2009-10) from
an out-of-state or in-state school district with a currently effective IEP and who was not
provided the same or comparable IDEA services within fourteen days and for the period
starting on day fifteen and running until such IDEA services were provided.

3. Compel JPSS to develop and implement specific written pohcles and pro cedures whereby
the district will contact and request either electronically or in writing within three days of
the enrollment of student from either an out-of-state or different in-state schée %1 d1stnct all
IDEA related records including any evaluations, IEPs, FBAs/BIPs, and< 1/501p11ne
referrals/infractions and obtaining such IDEA records within fourteen (14) days#

4. Compel JPSS to develop and implement specific written policies and procedures for
providing FAPE to any IDEA eligible student who transfers eitherfsom an out-of-state or
in-state school district including providing the fsame previously held IEP services or
providing services comparable to those in the previdusly held IEP until an evaluation can

be conducted and a new IEP drafted.

Smcerely‘,

2y,

Corrie Cockrell, Esq.

Sheila Bedi, Esq.

Mississippi Youth Justice Project

A Project of the Southern Poverty Law
Center

921 N. President Street, Suite B

Jackson, MS 39202

“y,.a school district that knows or should know that a child has an inappropriate IEP or is not
& rec%lvmg more than a de minimis educational benefit must correct the situation. If it fails to do so,
a disabled child is entitled to compensatory education for a period equal to the period of
depnvanon but excluding the time reasonably required for the school district to rectify the
roblem. iWe believe that this formula harmonizes the interests of the child, who is entitled to a
;;}gwgpropnate education under IDEA, with those of the school district, to whom special
education and compensatory education is quite costly.” Id. at 397.

The Office of Special Education Programs (OSEP) in the U.S. Department of Education has also recognized
compensatory education as a permissible means of providing FAPE to a child with disability who had a past
deficient program. See Letter from Office of Special Education Programs to Margaret A. Kohn, 17 EHLR 522 (July
10, 1990). “...OSEP’s position, which is supported by several court decisions is that compensatory education is an
appropriate means for providing FAPE to a child with disabilities who had previously been denied FAPE.”
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(Ph.) 601-948-3882
(Fax) 601-948-8885

Wendell Hutchinson, Esq.
Disability Rights Mississippi

Jim Comstock-Galagan, Esq.
Southern Disability Law Center
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